TO THE MAYOR AND COUNCILLORS OF THE
MACKENZIE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Membership of the Finance Committee:
Cr Graham Smith (Chairman)
Claire Barlow (Mayor)

Cr Russell Armstrong
Cr Murray Cox
Cr Noel Jackson
Cr James Leslie
Cr Evan Williams

Notice is given of a meeting of the Finance Committee to be
held on Thursday, July 24, 2014, at 9.40am, following an
Extraordinary Meeting of Council at 9.30am.

VENUE: Council Chambers, Fairlie.

BUSINESS: As per agenda attached

WAYNE BARNETT
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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FINANCE COMMITTEE
Agenda for Thursday, July 24, 2014, at 9.30am

-
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APOLOGIES — An apology has been received from Cr Murray Cox.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

VISITORS:
At 10am Meridian Energy will present to councillors in the public excluded
session.
At 10.30am a group of Japanese students from Mackenzie College will attend for
morning tea with the Mayor and councillors.
At 11am Jason Gaskill from Alps20cean will present his report to councillors.
At 11.30am Miles O’Connor from Bancorp will present his report to councillors.

MINUTES:
Confirm and adopt as the correct record the minutes of the Finance Meeting held
on Thursday, June 12, 2014, including such parts as were taken with the public

excluded.
REPORTS:
1. Financial Activity Report — May 2014 (attached).
2. Alpine Energy Ltd Annual Report 2014 (attached).
3. Fraud Event, Twizel Office (attached).
4. Alps20cean Report and presentation from Jason Gaskill (report to be

circulated before the meeting).
Bancorp Quarterly Report and presentation from Miles O’Connor
(attached).

o

PUBLIC EXCLUDED:

Resolve that the public be excluded from the following part of the proceedings of
this meeting namely:

1. Public excluded minutes of the Finance Committee meeting held on June
12, 2014, taken in public excluded session.

Land Sale Twizel (attached).

Website Credit Card Transaction Fees (attached).

Development Update (attached).

Tekapo Commercial Subdivision (attached).

Status of Land Sale (attached).

Development Proposal (attached).

Sale Contract Update (attached).

Development of Lakeside Drive land (attached).

©CoNoO~wN



General subject of
each matter to be

Reason for passing
this resolution in

Ground(s) under
section 48(1) for the

considered relation to each passing of this
matter resolution

Previous minutes of the Enable commercial 48(1)(a)(i)

Finance Committee, negotiations

June 12, 2014

Land Sale Twizel Enable commercial 48(1)(a)(i)
negotiations

Website Credit Card Commercial sensitivity 48(1)(a)(i)

Transactions

Development Update Commercial sensitivity 48(1)(a)(i)

Tekapo Commercial Maintain legal 48(1)(a)(i)

Subdivision professional privilege

Status of Land Sale Enable commercial 48(1)(a)(i)
negotiations

Development Proposal Commercial sensitivity 48(1)(a)(i)

Sale Contract Update Enable commercial 48(1)(a)(i)
negotiations

Development of Enable commercial 48(1)(a)(i)

Lakeside Drive Land

negotiations

This resolution is made in reliance on Section 48(1)(a)(i) of the Local Government Official
Information and Meetings Act 1987 and the particular interest or interests protected by Section 6
or Section 7 of that Act, which would be prejudiced by the holding of the whole or the relevant
part of the proceedings of the meeting in public are as follows: Previous minutes of the Finance
Committee, Land Sale Twizel, Status of Land Sale, Sale Contract Update, Development of
Lakeside Drive Land all under section 7(2)(i). Website Credit Card Transactions, Development
Update and Development Proposal under section 7(2)(b)(ii), Tekapo Commercial Subdivision
under section 7(2)(g).

RESOLUTION TO RESUME OPEN MEETING
ADJOURNMENTS:
10.30am: Morning Tea

12.00pm: Lunch



MACKENZIE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE HELD IN
THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, FAIRLIE, ON THURSDAY, JUNE 12,
2014, AT 9.30AM

PRESENT:
Cr Graham Smith (Chairman)
Claire Barlow (Mayor)
Cr Murray Cox
Cr Russell Armstrong
Cr James Leslie

IN ATTENDANCE:
Wayne Barnett (Chief Executive Officer)
Paul Morris (Finance and Administration Manager)
Nathan Hole (Planning and Regulation Manager)
Arlene Goss (Committee Clerk)

APOLOGIES:

Apologies were received from Cr Noel Jackson and Cr Evan Williams.
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST:

There were no declarations of interest.
MINUTES:

Resolved that the minutes of the meeting of the Finance Committee held on
May 6, 2014, including such parts as were taken with the public excluded, be
confirmed and adopted as the correct record of the meeting.

Claire Barlow/Murray Cox

MATTERS ARISING:

The chairman questioned whether councillors need to have a workshop to
review council’s insurance risks. Paul Morris agreed. Decisions need to be
made on whether some assets need to be insured for full replacement.
Council has already done a preliminary exercise to pull out items that are
worth less than the excess. Need to look at whether LAP is a better option.

Resolved that council holds a workshop regarding insurance and risk.
Claire Barlow/Murray Cox

Regarding the LGNZ communications proposal, the chairman reported that at
the provincial meeting this was not supported by many councils and has been
dropped. The Mayor has had a conversation with the chairs and supports



doing this out of the existing LGNZ budget. The chairman noted that minutes
from the provincial conference have been sent to councillors by email.

SUB COMMITTEE MINUTES:

Resolved that the minutes of the meeting of the Tekapo Property Group held
on June 4, 2014, including such parts as were taken with the public excluded,
be received.

Graham Smith/Russell Armstrong

REPORTS:
FINANCIAL ACTIVITY REPORT TO APRIL, 2014:

Resolved that the report be received.
Claire Barlow/Russell Armstrong

Finance and Administration Manager Paul Morris drew councillor’s attention
to page 43, which is the part of the report that details the planning area.
Nathan Hole, Planning and Regulation Manager, was at the meeting to
discuss this.

The chairman said this area shows money is not being spent and he is
concerned that work is not being done. Mr Hole said a planner finished work a
week ago and her position is being advertised. He hopes to be able to find the
right person to replace her.

A lot of background work has been done and he is expecting to launch into
some workshops with councillors to go through some issues. Due to the
resignation of the planner, work has stopped on this but he hopes there won’t
be more than a few months delay.

The Mayor said this is a critical role and she would rather wait for the right
person to be recruited.

The chairman asked how much time would be lost. Nathan Hole said a few
months, but not 12 months. He is also considering using an external resource
if the right person cannot be found in the recruitment process.

Continuing to have discussions with Ecan on how they can provide
assistance. Nathan Hole prefers an internal resource doing the consultation
with the community.

Cr Cox said an MOU between Ecan and council needs to be drawn up with
clear objectives outlined by both parties. Toni Morrison is working on this.

Paul Morris said the planning deficit is $46,000. The reason why that looks
good is due to receiving reserve contributions from developers. This is a little
misleading if you are looking at the bottom line.



The Finance meeting halted consideration of the financial report to welcome Wendy
Smith and Raewyn Bell from ADBT.

REPORT FROM AORAKI DEVELOPMENT BUSINESS AND TOURISM

Wendy Smith and Raewyn Bell from Aoraki Development Business and
Tourism (ADBT) attended the meeting at 10am to present the ADBT report to
council. The chairman welcomed them to the meeting and introduced them to
councillors.

Wendy Smith spoke to her report at page 19 in the agenda. ADBT has been
thrilled with the response from Mackenzie businesses. Raewyn Bell comes to
the district monthly to visit businesses and makes phone contact with them.
Business information in the report is anonymous to respect commercial
sensitivity.

The website www.southcanterbury.org.nz is used as a portal for many
businesses who pay to have a profile on the site. It is also used as a place for
the business excellence awards to be voted on. There has been a rise in
business partners from the Mackenzie District joining the site.

ADBT has run China workshops for businesses, which have been very
successful. Details were provided on how ADBT supports businesses and
their projects or issues.

The Mayor asked regarding the Twizel profile on the website. This and the
Mount Cook sections are still being developed. The Mayor suggested putting
an advert in the local newsletters encouraging businesses to use the website
and services.

Cr Leslie asked how he could assist ADBT in Twizel as a local councillor.
Wendy Smith suggested walking around with a guide to business services, but
ADBT is reaching a level where they need to be careful not to over commit.

The chairman said this was originally a trial to see if businesses and the
community would respond well.

The chief executive suggested that ADBT recommend to local business
people that they speak to an elected member about the service they receive. If
the people using the service can provide informal feedback to elected
members, they will be more comfortable to fund this further.

Wendy Smith continued to speak to the items in the report including the South
Canterbury brand mark.

There was discussion held on the freedom camping bylaw. There is a need to
have this by early November so it can be printed by ADBT in their guide, and
this can also go on their website.


http://www.southcanterbury.org.nz/

There will be strong representation from the Mackenzie District in this year’s
business excellence awards.

Raewyn Bell spoke regarding her experiences with businesses and the types
of enquiries they had.

A two day health and safety workshop in Tekapo was well received. A
disciplinary process workshop in Tekapo was held yesterday and this was a
smaller group. The expert was able to talk to businesses one-on-one about
their disciplinary issues.

The chairman congratulated ADBT on what has been achieved so far. A
referral arrangement with CCT is working well.

Cr Cox asked if they were getting enquiries from people who want to move to
South Canterbury. Yes some. A lot of our own businesses are growing. Do
they get enquiries from potential investors? Yes at times. Not really set up to
manage investors so will point people in the right direction if they have an area
of interest. If an investor is from offshore ADBT go to government agencies to
validate them.

The meeting adjourned for morning tea at 10.30am and reconvened at 10.50am.
PRESENTATION FROM EDUCATION SOUTH CANTERBURY:

A presentation was made by Julie McLean, chairperson of Education South
Canterbury, on the Education South Canterbury Strategic Plan. A copy of the
plan was handed to councillors.

This group hosts international fee paying students and offers international
education. They are looking to have a coordinated marketing plan for South
Canterbury offering a wide range of schools to larger markets than what
schools would reach individually.

International students are worth $11 million to South Canterbury. Every
student brings their family who frequently stay and visit the region. They are
often wealthy individuals who also look at business opportunities. The social
and cultural aspect that students bring to the district is also important.

One of the main purposes of the Strategic Plan is to secure further funding to
go out to our main markets.

Mackenzie College is not a member of Education South Canterbury and has
not hosted fee paying international students for some time.

Julie McLean said she is not asking for money. She would like a letter or
statement from council to say it supports in principal what they are trying to do
for the region. She requested a letter of support in the next week or two, which
would go to Education New Zealand.



The Mayor asked regarding collaboration between the Mackenzie District and
the Chinese market. Exchange students and fee paying students are two
different things. Exchanges and scholarships cost money for the schools and
the district and don’t necessarily lead to fee paying students. Economic
returns are from students who stay 1-2 years or longer and are fee paying.

Can the schools in the region provide the quality of education that fee paying
students want? Yes they go through the NCEA programme and we have an
understanding of what they need to do to enter university in their own
countries when they return.

Julie McLean said she is planning to talk to Mackenzie and Twizel High
Schools. She thanked council for the opportunity to speak. The chairman
thanked Julie McLean for the presentation.

Julie McLean and Wendy Smith left the meeting at 11.12am. The committee went
back to considering the Financial Activity Report.

FINANCIAL ACTIVITY REPORT TO APRIL, 2014:

Election costs were discussed. The chairman said some election activities
could have been done in-house. Paul Morris explained that election costs are
rated over three years and spent in one year. There is benefit in doing some
election activities in-house but the time required by some staff would be
significant.

Corporate services. The chairman asked regarding the Audit NZ fees.

On roading on page 40 Paul Morris commented that roading expenditure is
above budget. Next year is the critical year to spend NZTA money as it is the
last year of the NZTA programme. There was some discussion on the
spending of NZTA money.

The chairman noted that the next financial report will be an important one as
council nears the end of the financial year.

ALPINE ENERGY LTD DRAFT STATEMENT OF CORPORATE INTENT 2014/17:

Paul Morris apologised for the lateness of this report. The chairman attended
the meeting of Alpine Energy at which this Statement of Intent was adopted.
Alpine Energy is increasing their dividend. At the same time they have also
increased their debt and reduced capital expenditure. This financial year the
council received a dividend of $378,000 from Alpine Energy, and will get an
extra $20,000 next year.

Resolved :

1. That the report be received.
Claire Barlow/Russell Armstrong



2. That the draft Alpine Energy Statement of Corporate Intent for the year
ended 30June, 2015 and two subsequent years be adopted.
Claire Barlow/James Leslie

EXEMPTION MACKENZIE HOLDINGS LTD UNDER SECTION 7(3) OF THE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT:

Paul Morris said this organisation arose as part of the Pukaki Airport Land
Development. Council thought it would be good for this company to develop
the airport and sell the land around it. However, when you create a council
controlled organisation it has tax liabilities. So council brought the
development back in house and created the Pukaki Airport Board to manage
it. The board has three commercial directors/members appointed and a
councillor who is Cr Leslie. This has left the company as a shelf company. Mr
Morris is asking council to exempt the company from the full rules of the Local
Government Act to avoid a complex tax situation.

There was a discussion regarding the tax and GST responsibilities of the
company. The company has tax losses sitting in it. Paul Morris cannot think of
any reason why council would want a council controlled information with tax
losses for any reason in the future. Council is tax exempt.

Resolved:

1. That the report be received.
Russell Armstrong/Murray Cox

2. That council considers Mackenzie Holdings Ltd to be a small
organisation that is not a council-controlled trading organisation. As
Mackenzie Holdings Ltd does not provide any activity on behalf of the
council, and that benefits, in terms of cost savings, will accrue to
council and ultimately, the community, that an exemption under
Section 7(3) of the Local Government Act 2002 be granted in respect
of Mackenzie Holdings Ltd.

Claire Barlow/James Leslie

FUNDING REQUEST FROM FAIRLIE COMMUNITY BOARD:

Paul Morris said the land subdivision reserve is an amount of money
generated when residential developers undertake subdivisions. The Resource
Management Act says council can ask for land for reserves up to 5% of the
value of the subdivision, or cash to the same value. This allows council to put
in social amenities like playgrounds. Council tends to require the cash so we
can spend it on reserve works.

On page 43 of the agenda, a line item called ‘reserve contributions’ stands at
$153,000. This money is the land subdivision reserve. This is a district wide
fund allocated on merit rather than by location.
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The chairman says the village green has had a lot of community support and
has enhanced Fairlie. Cr Leslie asked questions regarding the design, the

potential for vandalism and the timeline. These questions were answered by
the chairman and the Mayor.

Resolved:

1. That the report be received.

Claire Barlow/Russell Armstrong

2. That council provides a maximum of $5,200 funding from the Lands

Subdivision Reserve toward this project.

Graham Smith/Russell Armstrong

3. That the project be run through the Fairlie Township Account.

PUBLIC EXCLUDED:

Graham Smith/Russell Armstrong

Resolve that the public be excluded from the following part of the proceedings

of this meeting namely:

1. Public excluded minutes of the Finance Committee meeting held on
May 6, 2014, taken in public excluded session.

2. Public excluded minutes of the Tekapo Property Group meeting held
on June 4, 2014, taken in public excluded session.

oo hw

General subject of
each matter to be

Reason for passing
this resolution in

Loan - Mackenzie Tourism Development Trust (attached).
Lot 26 DP52089 26 Glen Lyon Road (attached).

Tekapo Parking and Landscape Review Proposal (attached).
Aurecon Subdivision Fee Proposal (attached).

Ground(s) under
section 48(1) for the

considered relation to each passing of this
matter resolution

Previous minutes of Enable commercial 48(1)(a)(i)

the Finance negotiations

Committee, May 6,

2014

Previous minutes of Commercial sensitivity  48(1)(a)(i)

the Tekapo Property Maintain legal

Group, June 4, 2014 professional privilege

Loan — Mackenzie Maintain legal 48(1)(a)(i)

Tourism Development  professional privilege

Trust

Lot 26 DP52089 26 Enable commercial 48(1)(a)(i)

Glen Lyon Road
Tekapo Parking and

negotiations
Commercial sensitivity

48(1)(a)()
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Landscape Review

Aurecon Subdivision Commercial sensitivity  48(1)(a)(i)

Fee Proposal

This resolution is made in reliance on Section 48(1)(a)(i) of the Local Government Official
Information and Meetings Act 1987 and the particular interest or interests protected by
Section 6 or Section 7 of that Act, which would be prejudiced by the holding of the whole or
the relevant part of the proceedings of the meeting in public are as follows: Previous minutes
of the Finance Committee under section 7(2)(i), previous minutes of the Tekapo Property
Group under section 7(2)(b)(ii) and 7(2)(g), Loan — Mackenzie Tourism Development Trust
under section 7(2)(g), Lot 26 DP52089 26 Glen Lyon Rd under section 7(2)(i).Tekapo Parking
and Landscape Review and Aurecon Subdivision Fee Proposal under section 7(2)(b)(ii).

Murray Cox/Russell Armstrong

The Finance Committee continued in open meeting. The following resolutions relate
to a matter discussed in the public excluded session that is to be confirmed in open
meeting.

LOAN — MACKENZIE TOURISM DEVELOPMENT TRUST:
Resolved:

1. That the report be received.
Claire Barlow/Russell Armstrong

2. That the Council write-off the loan of $255,000 issued to MTDT
immediately.
Graham Smith/James Leslie

3. That the Council instruct the Trustees of MTDT to dissolve the Trust.
Graham Smith/James Leslie

4. That the Council write-off the settled amount of $27,637 in MTDT as a
consequence of there being no assets in the Trust to repay the settled
amount.

Graham Smith/James Leslie

Resolved that the resolutions regarding the winding up of the Mackenzie Tourism
Development Trust loan be confirmed in the public part of the meeting.
Claire Barlow/James Leslie

THE CHAIRMAN DECLARED THE MEETING CLOSED AT 12.22PM

CHAIRMAN:

DATE:




MACKENZIE DISTRICT COUNCIL

REPORT TO: MACKENZIE DISTRICT COUNCIL
SUBJECT: FINANCNE REPORT — MAY 2014
MEETING DATE: 24 JULY 2014

REF: FIN 1/2/1

FROM: MANAGER FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION

ENDORSED BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

PURPOSE OF REPORT:
To update the Committee as to Council’s financial position to 31 May 2014.

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:

1. That the report be received.

PAUL MORRIS WAYNE BARNETT
MANAGER FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

2014-07-24 finance report may 2014



13

*9JUBLIEA D|QRINOARY SIU} PRIE3ID Sey 25esn 3|IIYSA JOJOW [1PUNOD YHM PIJEII0SSE S3S00 pajedidiue ueyy J2amo

JU3WI)e]S 3s0dind 10} G/8TS$ PUE DINIDNILS SIIHWWOD JO MIIADI IO}

09€°7S 10 599} (83| se jjam se (y£7'9$) sopesSdn sajem [pzim] pue Juawdojansp pue| odeyal Joj s3unaaw dljqnd Yim pajeldosse s3sod pa1adpnqun

suol129|a-Ag

OM) JOJ $1502 p1a3pnaun apnjaul $1503 UOII33 3534 L "ESTSES JO 51502 UO0N199]3 Y3m Buole £6€°0zS Aq 193png ueyl 1Yy a1e 51502 330D BUOZ JDIEM
'S3IINP BJIX3 0} BNP S|9A3| Ale|BS O3 JUBWPUIWE PUB BABI| [EJUBIRJ 03 B3NP $HIDJI 3RIWWO)) JO dejsan0 01 aNnp $1503 paleddnue ueyl Jdy3iH

gHQDS Wo.y paianodal aq 03 palinbald $3502 ou 31042133 pue asnoy ul p|ay Suiaq 10u UoIR|3 03 anp sadJieyd paredidilue ueyy JoMoT
SISA|DUY 32UDIIDA

(z1)

870€6€
966°6
68y
802'€6¢
560y

9£0'E€6€

000°st

z6T'0¢E
vv8'LTe

vT0Z ANNT
ang Ad

£8E'SY 68v°C (¢v2'69) (ozg'st)
%L9°9T- (090°09) v62'09€ pse‘oey 6vL08E
S %8T°L9 SST9 €916 800°S LT
%C8'T 0SL IST'TY 107'0F 827
(185°01) - 18501 9S¥
%byLT- (r989v) ¥£189¢ 8€9'STE SZE0TE
%0T'€2- (615'6) 902’1V STL'0S TL6'SY
%TT E- (929'1T) €8L°29¢ LOT'TSE 62t'S9E
3 %6992 (6£9'TT) 0SL'EY TL0'CE 02022
%T10°0 € 9L9'LC 6L9'LT ov8'9z
*0 %000 (0) LSET6T LSE'T6T 695°9TE
PIOZAYIN  PTOZAVIN  €T0Z AVIN
INVIUYA %  FIONVIHVA ang dia 19V ALA *10V 1Al

(anyaq)/sniding Sunesado

sasuadx3 |elo)
sadiey) jeusayu|
sasuadxj uonensiuIwpy
sasuadx3 Adueynsuo)
sasuadx3j sIaqWaN
sasuadxy yusawAojdwy
sasuadxy

awoouj [e30)
3wodu| 183Y10
sajey payasdie)
sa)jey |eJausan
awodu|
JUBUIBN0Y

T

YT0Z AVIA d3AN3 4OIY3d 3HL 404
1¥0d3Y ALIALLDY
TIINNOD LIIYLSIA JIZNINOVIN




14

- - - (6£8'v) (te1's) sanlasay [ende) [e10)
- - (6£8'Y) (T€T'S) asuejeg Suluado
sanJasay |epde)

(z1) %00°0 - 68t (LvZ'69) 75942 san1959Y Sunpesado |ejoL
(z1) 6817 (L¥2'69) (ozg'sT) (3py8Q)/snjduns Sunesado
- - - 7L6°TY aouejeg Suiuadp
saAIasay Sunesadp
vTOZ ANNT PIOZAYW  PTOZAVIN  £I0Z AV
ang A4 IINVINVA % FINVIIVA ang aia 10V Q1A *1JV a1A1

11

YT0Z AVIN 30N3 Otd3d JHL ¥0d
L¥0d3Y ALIAILY
TIONNOD LIIYLSIA IIZNINOVIN



15

*3JUiRIBA 3|RINOAR) SIU} 0] PRINQLIIUOD Sey sadJeyd afepw [eusaiul pateddiiue ueyl Jamo ‘8

(rze‘zT)

ZEV'BIT'T

€789
80T'80T
TT6T
2LT'Y8T
¥2S'9TE
PPS‘SST
0v9'99T'T

801901

(922)
v0L'LTT
915'S0T
¥9T'€L8'T

vToC aNNr
ansg Ad

mMm < W o~

"3JUBLIBA B](EINOARY SIY] 03 PAINQLIIUOD SeY saduejeq aA1asal |exded pajedidilue ueyy Jamo' Vi
‘IuelIeA
9|qelnoAey siyy 01 pRINQLIIU0I dARY (6T 8TS) 51502 Suluuny 3a1yaA paledidiiue ueyl Jamo| pue (T06ZTS) 51500 asea| 1| patedidijue ueyy Jamo| yim suole
Sunesy 1o0j13pun Jano ASojouydal dwnd jeay JuaIys Jo asn 01 anp (052'SS) Suipping [1UNo) Bles BYY LI 53500 ALDLIIDRJ pajedidijue ueyl Jamon ‘9
‘3JUBLIBA 3|qEINOARLUN
SIY3 03 PaINquIU0d 3ney (LT ZTS) $1502 Adodoloyd pue (zpT'/$) s1503 adueansul pajedidnue ueyy Jaysiy yim uoie (9¢9°cS) s9a4 ZNUPNY Jo dnysem sapn|du| 'S
3JUBLIBA 3|BINOABJUN SIY} O} PAINQIIIUOD
sey (005T$) ueld uonoy pue A8azelss |endig pue (000°TS) IUBWAsSIOPUT J9IBM ZNOT PUB (TEEYS) Aed 218918115 YUIMm pajeidosse s1s0d paladpng ueyy Jaysiy ‘v
‘3JUBLIBA 3|QBJINOARY SIY] PR1E3ID Sey Jels Juawade|das uo JuawAoljdws jo Suiwn pue sadueyd y4eis 0} anp s1502 awAojdw3 pajedidnue ueyl Jamon €
*IUBLIBA D|BINOABJUN SIYY Ul PBY|NSAJ Sey S95.1ey2 2[201YaA Jojoul [eusalul pajedidijue Ueyl Jamo i
"3UNT Ul 1994102 0} Pa1oadxa S| 3| "9JUELIBA 3](BINOABIUN SIY} PRIEDID SBY UBJJ O} S3JIAIS 104 SUOISSIWWOD Jo 3d13231 Jo Sujwi] T
SISA|DUY 32UDLIDA
(Ls€'seT) 0v0‘ss 889021 (£202sT) (12yaqg)/sn|dang Sunesado
%60°S 205's6 6SS'SL8'T £S0°08L°T 8Y9LLT sasuadx3 |ejo}
- - - (9s5°c) HO USLIIAA S19SSY pue 3|es uQ sso
S %S56°CC SEYT 9v5°79 v61'8Y 891°8€ sadJey? leusai|
%¢0'0 144 66066 SL0'66 6v1'S0T uonejpaadaq
S %eTe9 LS6'0T TT9LT vs9'9 8LE'T asuadx3 358493u1 |eUIBIU|
M %6071 €69°9¢€ T6v¥'092 86L'cTT 8LIVIE aduBUdIUIEIA pue [euopnesddQ
> %vT0T- (06£'22) 095'zee 0SE'SYeT 166'TET $35Uadx3 UonensuIWpPyY
¥ %ET'S (615°2) TEV'EVT TSETST 66T°9TT sasuadx3 Adueynsuo)
%96°S 98.'€9 0Z¥'690T ¥€9'S00°T SL9'7L6 sasuadx3 yuawAo|dw3
sasuadx3y
%SS°T- (vss‘ez) 66S0€6'T SbL‘006°T LSY've9't awodu| |ejo)
- - - 000°s $]3SSY - 3|BS Uo ulen
S RhLLEY {921) (€s2) (6L€) L9V 2WI0dU] 153J93U] |BUIBIUY|
2 %1E0C- (6LL'€C) T90'LTT £87'€6 €27°06 9WIodU| |eulalu|
3 %ST'9- (156°9) €296 TLL06 65028 awodu| Jay10
%00°0 T £90°LTL'T 890°LTL'T 60L'9vY'T sajey [eJaua9
awodu|

$321A198 3e10di0)

YTOZ AVN YT0Z AVIN ET0Z AVIN
FIONVIHVA % FJONVIIVA ang aia 10V alA 1OV Al

T

YT0Z AVIN Q30N3 4OId3d JHL ¥04
140d34 ALIAILV
TRNNOD LIYLSIA 3IZNINOVIN




16

{Lv9°'TLE) %00°0 - (TLE'€LE) {es6°0ZT) {soo‘0tT) san1asay |ende) |ejo)
252 - - - aAJasay SunjesadQ wody Jagsues ]
0v£°00T SYET6 67£°T6 900'19 sanJasaY Sunesad woJy uoneaidag papuny Jajsuely

(z£5181) (Tvv'69T) (zs0'6¥T) (90t'16T) anJ9s9Yy Buneaadp wouy aunpuadxy jepde) Jajsuels)
802°C - - - SBAIDS3Y UIaMIA( SJajsued]

(S£2'967) (S£2'967) (t€7'v9) ¥6£°02 douejeg Suiuado

sonsasay |elde)

(9st'sT) %00°0 . v6L'T9 0S€E'9ZT (6£1°TT) saniasay Sunesadp |erot
(ov£'00T) (sve'ze) (6ze'z6) (900'19) ant9say (ende) 03 uonedaidaq papung Jajsued |
801'80T 660'66 SL066 6¥1'S01 SWwal| Ysed UON oeq ppy
TLS'18T Tvv'69T 750°69T 90v‘16T ansasay ende) o1 aunjipuadx3 |eude) Jaysuely
{oos‘0t) - - - SBAIISAY UIIMII( SJajsued)
{z£5'18T) (tvv'69T)  (zs0'6¥T)  (90¥'16T) ainypuadxy [eyde) - sajsuel)
(veeen) 0v0'ss 889'0¢CT (£T0TST) (wryaqg)/snidins Sunesado

- - (€80°T) ¥0£'96 aoue|eg Suuado

sanasay Sunesadp

vI0Z ANNT P10 AVIN PT0Z AV €102 AVIN
ang Ad FIINVIIVA %  FONVIHVA ang aia “LOV AlA "IV aiAl

YT0Z AVIA Q3AN3 AOid3d JHL 404
130d3¥ ALIAILV
FIONNOI LO1YLSIA IZNINIOVIN



17

766'001 (699°S) 9/5'S6 SPZ'10T £67°1€ A3ojouyday uoneunoju) [e3o)
000’ A %LTTT 533 0SL'C STY'T 6v2'T juawdinb3 pue ueld ‘SZ688.0
966'€ 25 %LLS6 80S°E £99°'¢ SST - juawdo|aAsp 31is g3M "vT083L0
000°8T 4% %SS°vS 000'6 00591 00S°L 0051 21eMYo0S ‘ZTO8SL0
966'9€ /%S508 8TELT £T6'€E 5659 - Judwdinb3 suopesunwwo) "TT0838.0
000'E 5 %0E'€L- (9107) 0SL'C 99.'v - aJnjonJiseJpu] JJoMisN ‘010880
- 4 (TvL'80) - TPL'82 - sfelay $19 "90088£0
- - - - 000"t $19uUuedS 13 $491d0) ‘S493Uld "50088L0
000'9€ %L8" Y- (€£0ST) 000'9€ €L0'TS YPSET J3n43S Dd "20088L0
Eo_ocsuwh uonewaoju|
- (106'6) : 106'6 164'8 Suiping jUNO) |321M ] {E10|
- T (ogL'v) - 0EL'Y - 1330 - s3uny 1 3unNuIng "0v68600
- - - - 16L'8 s1ad.1e) 'S£68600
- 1 (t£1'S) - TLT'S - suoneaouay 3ulp|ing ‘9768600
Suipjing jpuUno) RZIM
9/5'SY T/9'S 8/L'TY 90T'9¢ 8TY'LT Buipping 1PUNO) 31uey [e10)
- (092) - 092 - J2Y30 - SBUMY 1 Un}UIng "0¥68800
9667 S+ %6291 €eL's £16°22 08T'6T GST'OT ulwpy - s8unid 13 ainluing ‘S£68800
- - - - €17'T wswdinb3 pue jueld ‘SZ68800
085°0¢ A %99°'TT 66T'C 5988T 999'91 - suoizenoudy 3ulp|ing ‘9168800
Suipjing [PUNO) a1a1eY
000°€ 056 0SL'T 008'T 956’ uonessiuIpY jejo)
000°€ A= %SSYE 0S6 0S.'C 008'T 08T'T uawdinb3 pue 1ue|d ‘5768100
- - - - 9/L'C s12Indwo)d "T08TO0
uonesiviwpy
aimypuadx3 jeude)
p10Z INNT PTOZAVW  YTOZAVIN  £T0T AVIN
ang Ad PNVINVA %  IINVIHYA ang ala 10V QLA 1DV aLAl

¥T0Z AVIA G3AN3 QOIY3d IHL 304
L40d3¥ ALIALLDY
TINNOD LOIYLSIA IIZNINDOVIN



18

*IN330 30U [|IM SIY] 19D AQ pasn Ajjualiand apdiyaa 1033adsul Suip|ing pjo jo Juswadejdas pa3adpng €
‘WINIJOSUOI |BLIRY S|D 3y} 4O Med se ainypuadxa paladpnqun pasoidde 1Duno) z
suolzeaouas adyo pue dwndiesH uo ainypuadxa paiadpnqun T

SISA|puY 9IUDIIOA

2LS'T8T

¥00°'2€

v00°'ze

v10Z INNT
ang Ad

€

%000

4 %00°00T

FONVIUVA %

68£°0C Tvv'691 TS0'6YT 90v'161 asnmyipuadxy |exde) |ejo)
LEE'6T LEE'6T - 8€6EZT lue|d |eoL
LEE'6T LEE'6T - 8€6'€ZT SIOIYIA ‘0E6859C
jue|d
PTOZAVN  YTOZ AVIN  €T0Z AV
IDINVIYVA ang aia 10V QLA 1OV ALA1

1T

¥T0Z AVIA Q3AN3 OIY3d IHL Y04
140d3Y ALIAILY
TDNNOI 1O1Y1SIA JIZNINIOVIN




19

9JUBLIBA D|QBINOARY SIY1 Ul PRIINSAL SBY Sddue|eq aAIasal [eyide) paledionue ueyl Jomon
"3JUBLIBA 3|QERINOABJUN |[BIDAO SIY} 03 SunNgLIIU0D (869 vZ$) odexal ul s3sod Jiedal 1amo| Aq 125440 sadexealq 4o Jaquunu 1ay3iy e ol anp
(TSZ9TS) 314184 10} 53500 J030EAU0D pajedidiue ueyy Jaysiy yum Buole (£p0'pTS) SWayds ajepue||y ay3 uo siiedal yim pajeldosse s3s00 pajedidiue ueyy JaysiH
"9DUBLIBA 3|(INOARY SIY] Ul P3}NS3J SeY d1ep 01 5331A13s Suluaauidua uo Asuow juadsun
"a)ep 0} JeaA awoodul 1sa1a3ul pajedidipue ueyy Jaysiy ul pa3jnsal sey sasue|eq an4dsas |eyided pajedonue uey) Ja13ag
*AuAnoe Jadojanap uo Juapuadap S| SIYL ‘aJuelIeA 3|qRINOARS SIYY paleald sey polad syl Sulnp paAladad suolIiNguod [epueuly pa1aspnqun
9JUBLIBA J|BINOABJUN SIY} Ul PA}NS3J SBY JBBA |eldUBUl} €TOZ SUN( dY) Ul S98.4eyd 191eM JO [ENIIIE JBAO JO [ESIINRY

~ NN

SISAjouy 32UDIIDA

899621

9T9’'SE6
000°€
vrT'ese
[4-19:74
v08'TEY
646°0T
L6€°0€

v87'S90°T

$22'8TT
870'8¢€
000’
$01'99
876'6€8

Y10Z 3INNT

ang Ad

—

SLO°LL (96T°LT) 9/6°T6 169212
%Y6'T 6v0°9T 162°528 70L'608 96£°T89
9 %60°6- (0s2) 0SL'T 000°E 0SLT
%00°0 L LOETSE 00£TSE SOT'9g€
%S0°'6 8€7’9 926'89 88979 v42'0S
¥ were- (0£9'TT) 299°29¢ TEEVLE 062'78¢
S %y SE £09°E 89101 5959 €159
S0 %ES09 0Z1'8T 8£6'6C ST8'TT 00¢g
- - - YOT'E
%eSTT £21°€6 S65‘808 8£9°106 980'v68
M %TT6E 0/9°¢€T 658'vE 6258y 916°6€
%60°6 052 0SLT 000'€ 0SLT
LTT'T8 - L2128 TLV'6TT
%00°TZE- (8v'e) 10T (9g2'?) 6£E’8
%¥0°0 SZE vE6'69L 652°0LL TI9'€TL
PTOZAYIN  PIOZAVIN  £T0Z AVIN
DNVIYYA % IINVIUVA ansg ala 10V QLA "1V Q1A1

(3pyyaq)/snjdang Sunesado

sasuadxy jeroy

sas4ey) jeusaiu|

uonepasdag

asuadxg 3sa493ul [RUIDIU|
3dueuajulely pue [euonesadQ
sasuadx3 uonessIuIupy
sasuadx3 Adueynsuo)
sasuadxy JuswAojdwy

sasuadx3y

3wodu| [e10)

S1955Y Pa1saA
3WOdU| 153491U| [RUIDIU|
3WOJU| [BUIIU|
suolngLIuo) jedURUlY
awoou| J3Y10

sajey pajasdie)

awoou|

YT0C AVIN A3AN3 A0IY¥3d 3IHL Y04
1¥0d3Y ALIAILY
TIINNOD LIYLSIA JIZNINOVIN




20

(086°L15°T) %000 = (£88'T2S'T)  SET‘E66 T61°£80°T sansasay |eade) (ero)
(80T°€) (6v8°2) - - $9AI9$D4 SunesadQ woJy Jasuel |
(966) (e16) - - ansy dQ wouy/o} - Jajsuely,
9607y 880°TT - - an1asay Sunesadp wouy - 1asuel]
760°2S€ 182°TCE SvL'eee LE€9'LOE S9A1959Y SuiesadQ wouy uonedaidag papuny Jaysuel)
8°L'Y YEEY - - anIasay dO wouy snjdung do - Jaysueat
- - L2178 TLV'62T suonnqguIuo) |edueuld - Jajsuel]
1Z44 1Y - - - S19SSY PBISIA - Jajsuea)
(888°£€€T) (Lvr'eot’s)  (8€5°007) (osv) anJasay Junnesadp wouy aunypuadxy [eyde) Jaysuel )
748°90€ 6¥6'90€ 208'88L €€5°059 aoue|eg Buluadp

saAIBSaY |ende)

(958°6€) %00'0 - (zzv 8g) 0969L vL610T san1asay Sunesadp (€10
- - (£21°28) (tLv'62T) suolINquIuo) |enueuly jeyde) 03 Jajsued]
(vze'str) - - - [e3ide) 03 s}assy PaisaA Jaysuell
(z60°ZSE) (tss/zzg) (svL'zee) (68£60¢) 9AI959Y |eyde) 03 uolierdasdag papund Jaysuel|
P2'e8E L0E'TSE 00£'TSE SOT‘9EE SWa}| Yyse) UON 3oeq ppy
645'S8EC L66'LVT'T  vhO'vYE ¥8t'2SS anasay |elrde) 03 ainlipuadxy |ede) Jajsued),
(ocL'ey) (099°TT) - - SBAI3SIY Uaamlaq siajsued)
(6£5'58¢€'?) (L66°LYT'T)  (PPO'VYE) (r8t'2SS) aJnupuadx3 jeyde) - aassues)
899'6¢T (961'2T) 9/6'T6 169°21C (uayaq)/snidang Sunesado
(zeL'6€) (zz1'g¢) 955'8¢€ 8EY'T6 aoue|eg Suluado
saniasay Sunesadp
$TOZ AINNS PIOZAYVN  VIOZAVIN €102 AV
ang Ad DNVIYYA %  FONVIYVA ang ala 10V QLA 10V A1A1

YT0Z AVIN 3dN3 gOId3d 3H1 Y04
140d34 ALIAILDY
TIDNNOD 1D1Y1S1a JIZNIMNIOVIN



21

882'6T0'C ££0'859'T 98€'508'T ETELYT 918'SET 4918\ [92IM] [e30L
9.0t I %69°TY €64 €06'T OTT'T €1’e SISIBN 131BM "¥868ETO
955'TY 4 %00°00T £60'8€ £60'8€ - 09€'T $350)) JUISUO] 3IIN0S3Y "LO0BBETO
T6€°0T S RIE'EL 6869 975’6 L£S°T - siaMjJelN JUeIPAH 3414 “TSZ8ETO

- - - - IZARAS lueld "STZBETO
00T’SE6 v 4 %v6'16 TL0'88L SLTLS8 v01'69 - MB3N - jusuneal] "TTZ8ETO

- - - - s0z's M3N - SHIOMPESH "0TZ8ETO
966°6€ 3L %T9'ST- (szL's) £999¢ 88€‘TY 907'zs [emauay - SUOIIBUUO] BIIAISS "90CBETO
000'0€6 v #* %86'96 08978 005CS8 oeL'se 852°€9 |eMIUBY - SYIOMPESH ‘¥0TZBETO
Z6€°0T A %ST'TE TLO'E 9ts’6 T4 - [EMIUBY - UORENJNBY UMOL "TOZBETO
9LL'6Y - - - - S}9SSY P3IS3A "E6TBETO

1938 [PZIML

0zT'e (6¥8'ST) 098°C 60/'8T £2T°09T Ja1ep odeya) (eron
9/0'C J* %00°00T £06'T £06'T - - SI9}9N 4318 T868ZT0
- - - . 006°T ue|d 'STZ3ZTO0
¥%0'T J* %00°00T 156 156 - - MUY - SUOIIDUUOD IIIAIBS "ZTZ8TTO
- £ (602°8T) - 60L'8T LTT'8ST MBN - ludwieal) "TTZ8ZI0
a93ep odeyay

TL2'WPT 8EY'TL 860" 099'TLT 9¥1'SST Ja)epn Biped [eloy
9.0°C 4~ %00°00T €06'T £06'T - - SI91BN 1918 "Z868TTO
- - - - £YO'ET §150D) JUSSUOD 924N0S3Y “L08BTTO
S6T'S S %8TTE L19'T S6T'S 815°E 006T jue|d 'STZBTTO
000°0L 4 A %E8'T9 086°cl 000°0L 02092 1S0°0T MBN -juawieal] ‘'TTZ8TTO
000°Z€ T M %Ly L6 061°1E 000°2E 018 - [EMIUDY - SUOIIIBUUOY 3IAISS "90Z8TTO
000'SET T 2 %LV (11€'9) 000'SET TTETYVT 7ST'0€2 [eM3UdY - UONENDIIY UMOL “TOZSTTO

133epN e

a.njipuadx3 jende)
Y10Z ANNT 10 AVN PT0Z AVIN £T10Z AVIN
ang Ad FONVIHVA %  JONVIHVA ang ata 1OV AlA "DV ain

PT0Z AVIAN Q30N3 O1d3d JHL HO4
140d3y ALIALLDVY
TIONNOI LOIULSIQ JIZNINOVN



22

6LS'S8E'T

006°€0T

006€0T

966'6
9666

¥00'S
¥00's

9L0'C

vI0Z ANNT
ang Ad

Je3A [BDUBUL} MBU BY3 01Ul PIACW UIS aAeY sapesSdn Ja1em [221m] UO SHIOM b
000°££TS 32e 13foud ay) a13|dwiod 03 53507 “4e3A 15B| 000'SETS Sem 198pnq je10] Judwieasy Jaiem odexa] ayi Jo uonestjeuly '€
‘9JUBLIBA 3|(RINOARY SIY] PASNED 3AeY pue 198png mo|aq 3Je 921Nn0s Ja1em aleulalje 3|qisod Jo ANpigan] uo Apnis e Y3im paleldosse siso) T
SUOIIIBUUO0D BIIAIBS Ul puads 1amo| e Aq 195140 UaaQ Sey SIY3 JSABMOH “123pnq Papaadxa Sey UOIIB|INI1ID] UMOY YLIM PIIBIDOSSE S350D) T
SISA|puy 32UDLIDA
%00°0 £56°€08‘T L66°'LYTT vv0‘vve v8vCSS asnypuadxy jende) |ejo)
00008 00008 - - 12180 2B | B)NUE [RI0)
2 %00°00T 000°08 000°08 - - Sy10mpesH '0T¢8eC0
191\ BJBUID ] BYNUBA
€91°6 £91°6 - - 1918 ) BOIBUNG /AB|SIaAT |BI0L
4* %00°00T €916 €91°6 - - §3U3sU0) 22.1n0say *£088CC0

131 BOJDUNG/ADISION]

(5£4'T) L85t 79€'9 - 121\ SSBd Sa)ng |e101
3¢ %69°'8¢- (S£4'T) L85V 29€9 - apesddn Juawieas "TTZ8LTO
1DJBAN SSed Saxing

- - - Y4 2 121e M eyndo/3imysy g0l

B h - 144 S}JOMpESH "95Z89T0

1218 eyndo/imysy

£06'T €06'T - [44) 191B M\ 3jepue))y |ejoL

4 %00°00T €06'T €06'T - 't juswiesl)] "TTZ8ST0
- - - (osv) uoIsualx3 uone|Nd1ay 'z0Z8sSto

12180 3)EpUE|Y
P10Z AV Y102 AVIN €T0C AVIN
NVIIVA % IDNVIHVA ang ala ‘10V alA "DV LAl

T

Y102 AVIN 03AN3 aOId3d FHL 404

140d3Y ALIAILY
TDNNOD 101Y1S1A JIZNINIOVIN




23

ZrL'T6L

8€L'TSY

TEO'EST

88E°€
€0£°aST
¥97'6
TSETT

08t’'sv9

TLOE8T

¥06°8€

voS‘czy

Y10Z INNT
ang Ad

‘a1ep 03 JesA sadieyd 3sa493ul pajedidijue ueyl JAMO| Ul PalNsad SeY saduejeq aAIasal [eided pajedanue ueyl usnsg ‘9
JJUBLIBA 3]qBINOARJ SIY] O] PAINQLIIUOD daey odeya ul osje
(£98'9%) 51502 A11214303(3 pue (8/Z'0TS) SIS02 J0IIRIIU0D JaMO| yum paldnod (667°GS) odeal ul 1502 Suliojiuow Juasuod pajedidiue uey3 13mo ‘S
*3JUBLIBA 3|GRINOARY SIY3 Ul PA}NSaJ Sey d1ep 03 5321A13s Fuliaauidua uo Asuow juadsun v
'9)ep 0} JEDA BWODUI }5313Ul pajedidijue ueyl JIMO] Ul pa1NsSaa Sey sadue|eq 9A19saJ [ejided pajeddnue uey) Jamon €
‘Ajiaipoe sadojanap uo Juapuadap S SiYy] "doUBLIEA B|EINOARS SIY} pRI1BaJd sey polad 3yl Suunp paniadal suoingLIuod [epueuly palaspnqun ‘Z
2JUBLIBA 3]RINOAR} SIY) palesaudd sey sadieyd |esodsip Juaniya paradpnqun T
SISAipuy 32UDLIDA
vS9‘TL v66'9 £80°291 STEVS (3pyaq)/sniding Sunesado
%19°0T 61TV 08891V 199°CLE T66°0SE sasuadx3 jeloL
%L %00°0 @ 9v6°TET 8Y6'TET vEEvTT uonedaidag
S %95 VL S86'ST BEV'TT vSP's L18'ST asuadx3 3s9J93ul [eUIRY|
M %L6'9T 88€'vC 9ELEVT 8YE6TT S0S‘v0T aoueuUdUIRIA pue [euUONEISdO
2 %BT'ET 0L6'T 6¥'8 278’9 5€9°9 sasuadx3 uonensiuwpy
M %8991 648'T £92'TT 88€6 - sasuadx3 Adueynsuo)
sasuadx3y
%YELT vL8'STT vL8'ETY 8vL'6ES SOE'SEY awodu| [e10)
- - - - S)255Y P3IseA
9 %1 8T~ (0919} 799°s¢e 70T'6C vL8'TC AWOdU| 353I33U] |RUIBI|
- - - STT'6¢CT suonnquiuo) apeasdn
LST'9TT - LST'9TT 6LE'TE suonnqguIuo) jeueuly
9/0'9 - 9/0'9 679 awoouy 12Y10
%€0°0 10T TT'88¢E €TE'88E LOE'TST saley pajasie)
3awodu}
lamag

VI0Z AVIN VI0Z AV €T0Z AVIN
FDNVIHVA %  FONVIIVA ang ala 1OV LA *Iv alAl

1

YT0Z AVIN d3dN3 gOId3d JH1 Y04

1¥0d34 ALIAILLY
TDNNOI LI1YLSIA JIZNINOVIN




24

7SL°068 %00°0 ¥ 6v8°L9L r6‘T6T'T LTS‘SLL S3an13s3y |ende) |ejo)
- - - SIT'6CT suonnquuo) apesddn - sajsuedt
ZE0EST 9Y6'TET 8Y6'TEC veEEYTL sanIasay Sunesado wouy uonenaldaq papuny Jajsued )
- - LST'9TT 6LE'TE SUOIINQLIIUOD [BIDUBUL - 19JSUBL)
TL0'E8T - - - S)}9SSY PRISOA - Jassues)
(z6£'821) (2g5'Ly) (seL'zg) (LLv've) ansasay SunesadQ wouy aunypuadxy [eyde) Jaysuelp
ovv'e8s ovt'€8s TLS'LL6 99T'STY aouejeg Suiuadp

sansasay [eyde)

(92) %00°0 - (v68‘T) (210°2) {oog‘0L) sansasay Junesadp |e30)
- - - (st1'62T) |e3ideD 03 suonnguuo) apesddn Jasuels
- - (£51'91T) (6££T€) suornguIuo) [eueuld exde) 03 Jaysuel)
{(969'6) (888'8) - - JUNO2IY UBOT 0} I3JSuUeI ).
(2L0'e8T) - - - Jende) 01 51955y PIISIA JDjsues)
(zeo‘es) (ov6'1€2) (8v6°1€T) (vee'vza) ansasay |ende) 03 uonenaidag papuny 1ajsuelt
TE0'€ST 9Y6'TET 8Y6'TET YEE VLT Swi9}j Yysed UON 32eq ppy
76L'8CT LES'LY SEL'TE LLY'YT an19say |eyde) 0} ainupuadx] |eyide) ajsued)
(z6L°82T) (£g5°Ly) (seL'ze) (LLv'v) aJnypuadx3 jeude) - 13jsued)
L'T6T v669 £80°£91 STE'Y8 (woya@)/snjdang Sunesado
- - (zve'es) 088‘s aouejeg Suiuadp
SaAI3s9y Sunesadp
$T0Z INNT PTOTAVIW  PIOZAVIN  E€TOZ AVIN
ang Ad IONVIHVA % FONVIHVA ang ata 1OV AlA 10V A1A1

Y102 AVIN O3AN3 a0iY¥3d JHL 304
1490d3Y ALIALLV
TONNOI LDIYLSIA 3IZNINOVIN



25

26L'8T1

760°L2T
¥00°0S

880LL

00L°T
00L1

PTOZ INNT
ang Ad

%000

J* %85°8¢

4 %00°00T

FONVIUVA %

208vT LES'LY SELZE LLY'VT
20T’ET LE8'SY SEL'TE LLY'vT
TOT'ET LEB'SY SELTE LLY'YT
0041 00T - -
0041 00L'T - -
YTOZAVIN  PTOZAVIN  ET0Z AVW
IONVIIVA  ang i "DValA v aia

aunjipuadx] jende) jejo)

19MIG [9zIM ] [eI0 |

MB3N - juawieal] Jamas ‘TTy86¢0
S39SSY PIISOA "€6T8620

19MaS |9ZIM )

J13M3S anIasaY A3|SIaA3 [BIOL
A3]S19A3 - UONEINDNBY MBN "0TH8LZ0
19MIS BAIDSDY A3|siang

aunipuadxy jepde)

T

YT0Z AVIN 3AN3T AOIY¥3d IHL 404
1¥0d3Y ALIANILY
TIINNOD LIYLSIA JIZNINIVIN



26

136pnq wo4f sa3upLIDA JUDIIfIUDIS ON

&w&htq\ IUDIIDA
(v2) (szr'11) (z2) 6t9'S €0T'1E (yoyag)/sniding Sunesado
96888 %TE 0T 86€'8 8818 060°EL 95€99 sasuadx3 |ejo)
91665 %CS'T- (€€8) €26'YS 95/'SS ¥8C'€S uonepaidag
- - - - 679 asuadx3 15a433u1 |BUIdIU|
1561 J%8°9¢ G859 988°/T TOETT 860'CT aduBUBIUIEIN pue jeuoneladO
ZET'E S %TE68 ¥95°C 1L8°C LO€ Sze sasuadxz uopensiuwpy
9¢€’9 %Iv'T 8 808'S 9zL's - sasuadx3 Asueynsuo)
sasuadx3y
7888 %SE €E- (LzL?) 9918 6EL'8L 09t°'L6 awodu |eyo)
08€°9T 9 %LBEY- (£85°9) STO'ST 8ty's 996°L 3WODU| 353.431U| [BUIBY|
- 098°¢€ - 098 LEY'ST SUOIINQLIIUOY [RIDUBULY
6v'TL %00°0 T 1S1'99 751'99 959'c/ soiey pajadiel
[wodu|
lajemuiols
$T0Z INNS PIOZAVIN  PIOZAVIN €102 AVIN
ang Ad DNVIYYA Y  IONVIIVA  aNd ala 1OV AlA *19V Ql1A1
Tt

Y10Z AVIN G3AN3 QOIY3d JHL HOd
140d3Y ALIAILLY
TIDNNOD 121Y1S1a JIZNINOVIN




27

ovL'90p
916'6S
vZ8'9vE

(ve)

(916°6S)
916'6S
(v2)

YT0Z 3INNT
ang Ad

%00°0

%00°0

FINVIIVA %

FINVIIVA

LYL'TOY SOT‘v6E LS8'18€
£26'YS 95£'SS ¥87'€S
[24:%:1 723 6VE'8€EE €45'82¢€
(zz) 6v9°s £0T‘1E
(€T6'YS) (952's5) (y82'cs)
€T6'VS 95.'SS P8T'ES
(z2) 6¥9°S €0T'1E
PTOZAVW  PIOZAVW  E€T0T AVIN
ang ala *1OV alA 19V A1A1

sanIasay |eyde) [e10]

san1asay unesadQ wouy uonedaudaq papung Jajsued)
3ouejeg Suluadp
soAIas9Y |ende)

san1asay Sunesado [ero01
aAJasaY |ende) o1 uonerdsidag papung Jajsues)
SwIay| YseD) uon oeq ppy
(uoyaq)/snidans Sunesado
asuejeg SuiusdQ
saAlas3y Junesado

T

¥T0Z AVIA Q3AN3 dOI1d3d JHL ¥04
140d3¥ ALIALLDY

IDNNOD 1D14.LSIA 3IZNINOVIN



28

-a8ed Suimojjoy aus uo pawydiysy

s1 24nypuadxa Buipeoy JO s|1e19Q ‘dIUBLIBA 3JGEINOCABUN SIY] 0} PAINQLIU0D Sey (S09°E595) JeaA 3y Jo SuiuuiSaq Y3 18 SIUBAS JBYIBIM UMM PIIBIDOSSE S1S0D v
aouelIeA 3|qeINOAR) SIY] Paleald sey (98F°9TS) $93) INNIVY pue (T98°ZT$) 533} uolienjeaal ainjaniisedsul Sutpeos pajedidiue ueyl Jamol €
Buipeo. ade.a) eynue 10} (9/5°£TS) suonnguiuod apesSdn paye8pnqun jo 1d123a. 3yl Ag pajeald uaag Sey aJUeLIBA BjqRINOARY SIY ] T
sy10m jendes puny o
Jeuded 03 padiajsuel) usaqg sey Lye‘0z9s Jead ayi jo BuluwiSaq ayl 18 paJindio 1.yl SJUSAD JIYIRIM ISIDAPE O} SNp SI awodul Apisgns pajedidiiue ueyl Jaysiy T
SISAjpuyy 22uDLIDA
(Tz8'LsT) ZE0'L6L (€61'68) (oLz'vee) (v9z's6) (adyaq)/snidins unesado
€6T'TIT'E %EQ°LT- (s50'99v) TIELELT 99€°€0T’E TS9°ETY'E sasuadx3 |ejo)
- - - - on HO USIUAA S195SY pue ajes uQ sso7
089'001 2 %T0'9T £68'T vI8TT 126°6 89.°9T sadsey) [eusdiu)
87S'TY9'T %00°0 - YEL'VOST VEL'VOS'T L699S¥'T uonepaidag
8S9TYT'T v L %ETLY- (999'v6v) TEP'LVO'T L60°TYS‘T 8EVTE8'T 8uipeoy
- (z8¢€'8) - 8¢ S6¢ asuadx3 153431ul [euIsIY|
87€'S /* %S0°0S 444 ¥88't ov¥'e 085S’ sasuadx3 uopensiuwpy
0056 € A %vL8T L£0'ST STT'L8 88079 808'ET sasuadx3 Aueynsuo)
97,88 %LE'6 6192 €2E'T8 POLEL 990'00T sasuadx3 juawAo|dw3
681°L8 - - - - 3WOodU! [eus3lu|
sasuadx3y
TLE'E00’E %05°2T LL6'0EE 8TT'8Y9Z 560°646C 88€°82E’‘E awoou| [eyo)
9TS'VTT - - - - S12sSY PaIsaA
¥89°6 3¢ %08°91- (t6v'1T) L18'8 98€’L 9€8 SWOdU| 352193U| [euIdIU|
- - - - LTL'TT suonnquiuo) apesddn
$00'62 z /> %18°€9 596°9T £85'9 ISS'EY 98t 1€ awoau| 13Y10
POLOYS'T T J*%EETT 9PE'STE TIETTIY'T 859°LTL'T 98£'090°C SJueIH pue saipisqns
8¥8'0T %000 0 76’6 vv6'6 ove0T sajey paiatiel
9T9'867'T %T0'0 LST 86€°06T'T §SS061°T TTETTT saley |eJaUdY
awodu|
Suipeoy
vTOZ INNT PIOZAVN  PTOZAVIN  E€I0Z AVIN
ansg Ad DNVIIVA % FJONVIYVA ang dala *10V Q1A 10V QLA1

T

Y102 AVIN G3AN3 QO1d3d JHL 304
1¥0d3Y ALINILY
TONNOD LOIYLSIA FIZNINOVYIN




29

"6€6'8STS JO puadsiapun ue u) synsal ) puads

|en1oe WOy papn|oxa st SIYl 4| 'S09ES9S JO JuBWIRISUIRL AJuaBiawd uo puads pajsSpngun ue sapnpoul siyl ‘999'v6Y$ Ag Juadsiano s) adueuajulew uo y@3png Suipecy

SIsA[puy 32UDLIDA

ZS9°TYTT %ET LY- (999'v6t) TEV'LVO'T L60°TYS'T 8ELTEV'T Suipeoy jejog
000°0€ 7 %0786 650°L2 00522 1324 8/9°TT ueadogsdly '90E9rST
¥00'SE S %99°€T £8€'Y [80°T€ v0L'LT 7£0'92 sylediood "F0EIPST
r9°ce 3¢ %68'1- (z6€) £52'0T 6vT'Te YIv'TC usuel| Suiues)) 1S - 32N a8eulelq ‘c0EIYST
000°eT 47 %98°€T §29°C 000'TT S/€8 TYT'TT Isues] - 399]3-53Y317 193435 "TOEIYST
v00°LT S %T6°S9 S/2'0T £85°ST rAR IEV'S sueu] - 32N - SIY31T 193135 "TOEIYST

- (509'€59) - S09°€S9 068°LV8 judwaleIsuIRyY Aduadiaw ‘88Z9YST
76°0L P USTTY SLV'LT 209 65S°LE LTy 121439313 - unYsn 19345 "72TTIYST
000'st J* %68°6C ogeetT 0S2'Th 026’82 79TV Jueudjulei - Sullysr 199415 "TZZT9YST
966'69 I %TSPS v86°vE €9T'v9 6L1'6C 86V'vY 30N SIINIBS DR ) "ZZTOYST
oL TYT %CET 0z0's 26’621 716'921 8PT'1CT QOYA [EIUSWIUOMAUT *TZTOYST
000vC 2 %LT Y8 LTS8T 0002C €81 ovv'st 5d03153[31eD BIUBUBIUIRIA SB4NIINIIS "THTTIIVST
000°09 7 %89°6Y £€CELT 000sS £119°'1T 66€'2E Sa8plig 2UBUBUIBIA SRUNIONAS HTTIIYST
TIEVT 3 %0€°C- (z18) 982°te 86L°C¢ S0v'2T uiues|) 15 - a0 adeureq TETTIVST
00009 ¥ %LT0- (9v1) 000'sS 9v1'ss 9£9%9 20N d3euleq 2uNoY “ETTIYST
000°09€ " %Y9T- (z2L'8) 000°0€€ LTL'BEE 899'6Z¢€ 90)|Al JUSWAAR pajeasun ‘ZTTIYST
00°0LT %LY°0 Y4 LE8'SST OTT'SST YIT'E9T YA JUBWIBNERY P3|eIS "TTTIYST

- - - - 19%'8T JUIAZ MOUS dBUNf ZTOZ/TTOT - M ONAUT HO8TIEST

Suipeoy

vT0Z INNT PTOZAVW  PTOZAVIN  £T0Z AVIN

ang A4 DNVIYYA %  IONVIHVA ang dtA 10V dLA *10V Q1A1

1T

YT0Z AV J3dN3 4OId3d 3H1 Y04
140d3Y ALIAILDYV
TIDNNOD 1D1Y1SIA JIZNINOVIN




30

(€09‘6TE) %00°0 - (v8L'2€0'T)  S29L29 (bL2'vY) sansasay |eyde) |e30)
96/'ST - - - Asy 1esadQ wouy xade) 104 pund - 49jsued)
971928 €LTLSL LPE0T9 - Apisgns |ende) yLZN 43jsued)
9TYv'LLS - - - ansy do wouy/o3 - Jajsues)
89€CLL v00'80L 900'80L 1£6'V89 sansasay Sunesado wouy uonedaidag papuny Jajsued

(tzs'8t0t) (coT'tEe't)  (eLs'1€L'T)  (896°L69°T) anJasay BuiesadQ wouy aunypuadxy [eyde) Jaysuel )

(¥569.8) (vs6'9LS) 6V0'TE0'T  £S/'896 aduejeg Suluado

$3AIa59Y |enden

(szr'Lgg) %00°'0 - (z6€'T2) (£99'v1) S8€‘689 sansasay Sunesadg jelo)
{911'928) (eL2'LS¢) (Lv€'029) - Apisqns [ende) y17ZN Jajsuel|
(9ts'vtT) - - - leideD 03 519SSY PIISIA J9ysued|
(89€'244) (#00'80¢) (900'80£) (££6'v89) anJasay |eyde) 03 uoliedaudaqg papung Jaysued),
82STY9'T YEL'VOS'T YEL'VOST 169°9SY'T Swial| Ysed UoN deq ppy
T78'8Y0°C LOT'TT6'T LLL'TEL'T 896°£69'T aAIsaY Jeyde) 03 sunypuadxy |eyide) Jsysuel )
(9£T9€T) - - - SBAI959Y UIIM]I(Q SJasuel |
(tz8'sv0'e) (cot'tee't)  (222'teL'T)  (896°469'T) ainypuadx3y |eyde) - Jaysuea)
(Tze’LsT) (e61'68) (oLz'vee) (v9z's6) (wayyaq)/sniding Sunesado
a2 14 YPE'8T (€LL'97) 688'8 2ouejeg SuiuadQ
sanI9saY Sunelrado
¥TOZ ANNT PIOZAVIN  PTOZAVW  €TOZ AVIN
ansg A4 IINVIVA %  FINVIUVA ang ali 10V Q1A 1OV QLAY

PT0Z AVIN 30N3 AO1d3d JHL Y04
130d3Y ALIAILV
TINNOD LIIYLSIA ZNINIOVIN



31

128'8v0°C %00°0 0€E‘68T LOT'TZ6'T LLL'TEL'T 896°£L69'T 2amupuadx3 jeyde) jejo)
€15'860°C 0SEV8T 859'TT6T 80€22L'T TSY'689°T Suipeoy |ejo g
- - - - - 51955y 0} J9jSUBI "6668E9T
- - - - §92'st Ipeoy pasipisgnsun sYJoM Buljeas aspug eupuexaly axyel 'TZLT8E9T
- - - - - 5)9ssY 0} J9Jsuel] "6668YS¢C
0000S€ %.8°T 0559 000°0SE 0SP'EVE 861'€T d0eUID L BYNURIN ‘96EBYST
000°0T /= %00°00T 000°0T 00001 - - S3SNOH 1sed Suless ‘S6E8YST
- - - - mNm.w MO|JIBA0 v_._mn_‘_mu awuwrcwu ‘P6EBYST
- - - - 979 syuawanosdw| adedsyaans "06E8YSe
000062 %L 291'60¢ 000'06T 8€808 TZ0'SLT syuswanosdw] JIOUIN “TYESYST
00009 3 %L0°18C- (S¥9'89T1) 00009 S¥9'87¢ 192’89 Supens - sylediood "0TESYST
- - - - SLEE doueUdUIBIA J0UlN Yledlood ‘00E8YST
¥00'S 4 %00°00T [8S'Y L8S'Y - - S)UBWBA0IdW| PRIeIDOSSY "TET]YST
96T'vL S %T9EY 199°6¢ £70'89 75€'8¢ Tr2'69 S|EMauaYy SIDINIDS JlYYed) "ZTT8YST
966°6 I %ETE9 v6L'S €916 69€'E 08L'S sdojsjaiien syuawadedal Jusuodwio) sainoNNs "TSTZ8YST
¥89'ST S %S 0L 8ET0T LLEVT 6ETY 187y sa8puiq sjuswade|da. usuodwo) s24NNIS "STZ8YST
676'02T 4~ %00°00T 676°0CT 626'0CT - - uollell|iqeyay Juawased peoy paeas "yIzese
88T'cY oL %YL 89- (stz'22) 685°6¢ ¥08'99 66T Jemauay afeuresq "€TZ8YST
000°02s 3 %LEET- (8¢5'69) 000'0zs 875685 660899 Sulennsay peoy pajess "¢TI8YSe
000°sZy S %SY'TT LT6'TS 000'szY €80'27L€ 188°'T6Y guyieray peoy pajeasun “TTZ8YST
9TSvTT - - - - 51955y Pa31SaA "€6T8YST
- - - - 00001 sjuawanosdw| JOUlN "Z8T8ZST
= - - - 000°0T sjuawanosduw JOUlIA "Z8T8TST
= - - - TL0°6T Bupeyinsay peoy pa|eas "€8TR0ST
Suipeoy
80£°0T 086V 6vv'6 697’V L1588 3un ssauisng ulpeoy |e3o)
- - - - - S33sSy O} J3ysuel "6668980
80€°0T 7 %0L°CS 086y 240 69V'Y L158 sa23ndwo) "T008980

un ssauisng Suipeoy
aJnyipuadxy jende)
vTO0Z ANNT vT0Z AVIN vT0Z AVIN €10Z AVIN
ang Ad FOINVIHVA %  FINVIHVA ang ala 10V AlA 10V a1A

Y107 AVIAl Q3ON3 AOI1d3d IHL Y04
130d3Yd ALIAILYVY
TIONNOI LOIYLSIQ IIZNINDOVIN



32

3lUeBLIRA 3|qeINOAR) SIYY palesauad sey (TRZ'¥S) suonesljgnd Jo $3500 1amo| Yyum pajdnod (O£ /$) 51502 adueinsul pajedidijue uey) J1amon v
*1edA 3Y) JO pud 3y} 0}
mou dn dwed jj1m 3500 SiY3 18y} padadxa s 31 pue paseajaJ Uaag aney suolsag "€TDd Y3m paleldosse s3s02 Adueyjnsuod pajedidiue ueyy Jamo €
BIUBLIBA B|(BINOARS SIY] Ul P} NSAI SBY MBIASL UBjd 321ISI] UM PBIRIJOSSE S350 pajedidijue ueyy Joamon rd
‘3dUelIeA S|BINOAEY SIYF paieald sey Alianoe sadojanap paledidiue ueyy JaysiH T
SIsAipuy 32UDLIDA
(9epr'zee) 00v°9 (e€L'voE) (88129} §81°00T {(1yaq)/sniding Sunessdo
00£'ve9 %€9°0T €L0°8TT SLTUS (4174 274 v8L9€E sasuadxy [ejo)
788y 3 %T0°€ES- (rL€T) LLY'Y 1589 6ES'E sagaey) [eussiu|
89T %91°C € ST 18T (4% uonepaidag
979’8 %L 529's 868'L €L2'C 885 SduBUAUIRI pue [euoniesado
¥09°ce 14 A %1959 96TVT L£9'TT 'L 9€8'1T sasuadx3 uofensiuiwpy
9T1'98¢ € 7 %C6'8C £¥8'SL £42'79¢ 0EY'98T 114%:14" sasuadx3 Axueynsuo)
ZT6°00€ 4 %86'8 08.4'v¢ 9€8's/2 950'TST 6VS'TUT sasuadx3 juawAiojdw3
sasuadxy
v98‘16C %CS 9 ELY'VTT rs'L9T ST0‘Z6E 696‘9EY awoouj [ejoL
74 I %LETY- (6) [44 €1 8 SWOdU| 353J33U] |eulalu|
966'6€ T S RYLETE 769°8TT £€99°9¢ GSE'SST 66L6CT SuoIINQLIIUO) IAIDSAY
089'v6 %.9'9 16L°S 06298 185'26 81968 swodu| J3ylo
¥9T'LST %00°0 () £90PYT 990'v¥T ¥ISLTT sajey [edauad
Qwodu|
Suuuelg
v1T0Z AINNT YT0Z AYIN vT0C AYN €T0C AVIN
ang Ad PNVIHVA %  JOINVIHVA ang aia "1OV dlA IV LAl

T

PT0Z AVIN d3AN3 40IH3d FHL HO4
1¥0d3Y ALIAILDY
TIINNOD 121Y1S1A IZNINIVIN




33

sansasay jende) (eioy
sanlasay Bunesadp wouy uoneldaidag papund Jajsuel|
doueleg Suuadp

sansasay |ende)

sansasay SunesadQ |eloL
9A1359Y UOISIAIPQNS PUET WI0.4/0) J3jsuel)
anIasay jende) 03 uoneasdag papung Jajsues)
SWIaY YseD UON oeq ppy
(uayy2q)/snidans Bunesado
2oueleg uiuadp

sansasay Sunesddp

TT

PT0Z AVIN 3AN3 aO0IH3d JH1 404
1¥0d3Y ALIAILY
TDNNOD LIIYLSIA JIZNIXIOVIN



34

‘pouiad ay) Joj synoagieyd age|iw pajedidilue ueyl Jamo L
J0)oeJlu0d Juawade|dal 1O} 911 JAMO] B 1B [EMBUDS pUB |3ZIM] Ul J0}DEIIU0D Ag

papiaoad sa2iaias Jo Sulsade) 0) anp SJuUeLIEA B[GRINOARS SIYY 01 JOINGLIIUOI Ulew 3yl si (€2/°6TS) [0411u0) 80Q J0J 51509 10121 UOD pajeddiue uey) JamoT ‘9
‘pa1EMUaAD 194 JoU sey jeys joodysiy

woJ} |ed feuoyippe ue Joj 3uilagpng o3 Ajuiew anp s1 yaym (90£°SsS) saay jeany pue (881°0€$) Anaioe Suip|ing ay3 Joj 53500 aduesnsul pajedidilue uey) Jamo G

‘aJUBeA SIY} 03 PaINQLIU0I sey yaym 133png 03 pasedwod puads jo Sulwil 01 anp 689°€TS Aq 198png mojaq aJe sasuadxa Aduensuo) yog k7
*§1500 33e10303adsu|

J3y31y yum pajeroosse s3sod {euoilippe AQ 195440 9AB3| |BNUUY JO poLIad papualxa 0} anp 2IUdaP |IALD YHUM paleidosse s3sod pajedidijue ueyy Jamol €

2oueleA 3|qeanoAey siy} pajesauad sey soueljdde aJiy pjo jo d(es Z

adulelen 3|qeinoAey SIY3} 03 painguiluod sey (9/5°c€0TS) 21e4030adsu| Suipjing woJy sanuaaas pazedijue ueyy JaysiH T

SISAjpUY 2IUDLIDA

(vz)

762995

8YL'TE

9T9'8¢€
vzr's
880'3VT
bv6'98
710'9¢
092812

892995

ore
c6T'vee
099°LYT
9/1v6

vT0C ANNT
ang Ad

M < WO

LOT'VE (veT’6) 226002 £19°08
%59'91 ST6°L8 £12'82S 88Z°0tv £00°SZY
S %E6'TE $85°6 6T0°0E SEV0T S9¥°LT
%100 ¥ 86£'SE ¥6£'SE 6TP'EE
3¢ %60°22- (850'T) 169V A oTt's
J* %6S°ST 40,344 9Z0'sPT vzL'02T £0T'80T
S %95 Ly 641°8€ 76518 €54ty TLS'VL
S %16'8Y LPT'9T TTO'EE ¥98'9T £TT'8¢
%L0°T VA4 %4 0€5°00¢ £€8€86T zoz'ovT
%ES'ET TET‘T2T 6L0°6TS OTT'TY9 029's0s
986°02 - 986'02 -
J %PS'SST 795 (1144 8L 099
J* %S8'EE 885°00T 9/1'L6C ¥9.'L6€ STL'0TE
- - - 000y
3¢ %000 (@ GSE'GET £5E'SET (474 741
2 %000 (€) 87£'98 q7£'98 ££0'99
PTOZAVIN  YIOZAVIN  £T0Z AVIA
IINVIYVA % JINVINVA ang ala 1DV Q1A 1OV ALA1

(ayaq)/snjdang Sunesadp

sasuadx3 |ejo}
saguey) jeusaju]
uonemaidag
3suadx3 153431l |eUId|
JUBRUDIUIRIA pue [euoneladQ
sasuadx3 uonesIsIuIupyY
sasuadxj Adueynsuo)
sasuadx3 yusawAojdw3
sasuadx3y

awodu| [e30]
S1355Y - 9jES UO uley
3WOdU| 1S3491U] [BUIDIU|
3wWodU| JBYI0
sjuel pue salpisqns
sajey payadie)
s9ley |eJaUdD

awoduy|
Aioje|n3ay

IT

PT0Z AVIA GIANT QOI1¥3d IHL 404
1¥0d3y ALIALLY
TINNOD 1Y1SIA JIZNINIVIN




35

(L6v°L6)

9198
(¥r92°s8)
(6£'0S)

{8z0‘s)

(919°8¢)
919'g€
¥9£'58

(+00’S)

(¥9£°s8)

(74}

Y102 INNT
ang Ad

%00°0

%00°0

FINVIHVA %

- (zs5L°L8) (8vs‘08) (0s1'6S)
86€'SE v6E‘SE 6TY'EE
(£19'84) (€9t99) (000°02)
(e€S'vv) (o8z'6Y) (6£5TL)
= (1zL'€T) 226°002 £€19°08
(86£'s¢€) (v6€'sE) (6zt'eE)
86£°GE ¥6€°SE 6Tyee
L19'8L £9t'99 00002
(£85'v) - -
(£19'8¢2) (€9¥'99) {000°02)
(veT's) 226'002 £19°08
PIOZAVIN  PTIOZAVIN  €T0T AVN
IDNVIHYA  aANg alA *19V Q1A 19V a1l

sanlsay |ende) |eyo)
san19s9y Sunesadp wouy uoneaidag papung Jagsues|
aAJasaY Bunesad wouy aunyipuadxy jende) Jajsued)
souejeg SuiuadQ

sanIasay jeude)

saniasay Sunesado |e304
anIasay jenden 01 uonenaidag papung Jajsued)
SWwIa}| YSeD UoN 3oeq ppy
an3s3y [eHde) 03 ainypuadx] [ejide) Jajsued |
aAiasay Sunesado wouy aunypuadx] [elide) Jajsuesy
aimyipuadx3 [ende) - 1ajsues
(udyaq)/sn|ding Bunesado
2oue|eg Suluado

sansasay Sunesadg

1T

YT0Z AVIN Q3AN3 OId3d JHL 404
1¥0d3d ALIALLV
TIINNOD LOIYLSIA JIZNINOVIN



36

v9£°S8

95.°LS

¥00'0S

TSLL

¥00's
$00's

$00°€2
700°€C

vT0C ANNS
ang Ad

%00°0

> %€9°e-

L %8S°CT-

#* %00°00T

/%108

FDNVRIVA %

SST'ZT L198L £91°99 0000
(£55T) £¥6'CS 005°SS 000°CT
(£99°T) LE8'SY 00S'LY 000'ZT
(v68) 90T, 0008 -

L85V 185t - 000’8

185 £8SY - 0008
STT0T 18012 £96°0T -
seT'ot £80'TC £96'0T -

PTOZAVIN  PTOZAVIN  €T0Z AVIN

PDNVIHVA  aN8 AlA 10V 1A *12V a1A1

ain)ipuadx3 jeyde) jejol

aJl4 |eany [ejo)

S9]PIYaA "0EGBEB0

juswdinb3 pue jueld ‘SZ68E80
aal4 jesny

|043u0) [ewiuy (B30
juawdinb3 pue jue|d ‘5768690
[oJ3uc) jewiuy

23U3jaQ |IND [BI0L
uawdinb3 pue jue|d "SZ680T0
dUdRQ IND

ainupuadx3 jeyide)

It

YT0Z AVIN AIAGN3 A0IY¥3d IHL 404
L40d3y ALIALV
TIONNOI LDIYLSIA IIZNINOVIN



37

sa8seyd adejiw pajeddijue ueyl Jamoq 7
"9A0CE PaUOIUBW $33) 91ed Ul 9seatdul 9yl Aq 1eYmawos 19540
u9g dARY 53502 3say| ‘|esodsip 33Sem pIios YHm pajeidosse s3s03 pajedidijue ueyy Jaysiy o1 anp 388png ueys t1ays1y aJe $3500 adueUIUIBA Pue |euoiiesadQ €
UINRHIPUN 3IOM JII|42J 03 SUOIIEIO[|E 1502 Ul 98ueyd 01 anp Juawadeuew 21Sem Yim paleidosse s3s02 paledidnue ueyy JaysiH 'z
"30UBLIBA B|EINOARY SIY} Pa1R3JD Sey $33) 91e8 paledinue ueyl JaySiy T
SisAjpuyy a3uDLIDA
{686°T) v8S'16 (£vo’s) (zst'eT) 010°CS (ydyaqg)/sniding Sunesado
€SL'8TL %98°L- (sv8‘ts) vT6'659 6SL'TTL 6v6'T8S sasuadx3 |ejo]
2L5°0T /%0579 0529 1696 s 896'T s981eyD [eusaiu|
880°0¢ 2 %100 (2) YIy'8T 9TH'8T TL19 uonepaidag
- (sz6'sT) - SZ6'ST - asuadx3 1584931 |eUI3IU|
LTL'%%9 9 %L8°9- (rs9‘ot) 8/6'T6S 7€9'2€9 €0L°€ES aoueuduIe|N pue [euoliesadQ
758°S 3 %S9°6S- (vzo'e) YEY'S 85t'8 ¥92°0T sasuadx3 uonessiuiwpy
96781 7~ %96°0€ vZE's €6TLT 698°TT 016t sasuadx3 Adueynsuo)
89/'8T o %LTTT (vT8°€) $0T'LT 8T0'1C vE6'ST $asuadx3 yuswAojdw3
sasuadx3y
v9L'9TL %L0°9 6EL6E £98vS9 90969 656°€€9 awoduj 2301
- - - - 978 $}9SSY - 2|eS uo uleo
(z6€'T) » %00°00T- 9/2'T (9£2'1) - 42 BWO0dU| 353433U| {RUIBIY|
80T'€0T FaRIA NS TS2'8E 6VE'T6 009°0€T 606°6TT awodu| 43410
09L'TEY %S0°0 [4%4 08L'S6€E 766'S6¢€ L8V°CT saley pajasie]
887'€8T %00°0 - ¥10°89T ¥T10°891 599005 sajey jeIdudH
awodu|
a1seM pIIoS
$10Z INNTF PIOZAVYW  PTOZAVIN  €I0Z AVIN
ang Ad DNVIHVA Y  IDNVIIVA  ANEAlA 10V AlA "1V 1A

1

Y102 AVIN 03AN3 QOIH3d 3HL Y04
1¥0d3Y ALIAILV
TDNNOD 1DIY1SIA JIZNINIOVIN




38

68T'ET %000 - STSTT (6€L'StY) (192'sLy) San13say |eyde) jejo)
880°0¢C YIY'8T 9Tv'8T TLT9 san1asay Sunesado wouy uoneddidaq papung Jajsuel|
(6689) (668°9) (951'v9v) (ze6'18Y) aouejeg Suiuado
sanl1asay |ende)
(2333 %00°0 - (sTs‘sog) (¥9v'0Th) (££9°9€€) sansasay Sunesado |e10}
(880°02) (PTH'8T) (91¥'8T) (Te1'9) 2353y |ende) o} uonedaidag papung Jajsuedt
880°0C PIP'ST 9TH'8T TLT9 SWdY| YseD UON xdeq ppy
(686'T) (L¥0'S) (zsT'e1) 010'ZS (woyaq)/sn|dang Sunesado
(950'1€€) (89%'€0€) (z1E'€6E) (£v9°88¢) doue|eg 3uuadp
sanIasay Sunesadp
Y102 ANNT $TOZAVIN  VIOZAYW  €TOZ AVIN
ang Ad INVIYVA %  IINVIIVA ansg ata 1OV Al1A 19V A1A1

Tt

Y102 AVIN 3N A0I1Y¥3d IHL 404
130d34 ALIALLY
TINNOD LOIYLSIQ AIZNINIVIN



39

*$3502 153433ul pajedidnue ueyl JOMO| Ul paynsaJ sey sadue|eq anJasal |ended pajedidiue ueyl Jamon
2IUBIIBA D]EBINOARJUN SIY} PIIEDID SBY ISN] [BIIPBIA DIZUDNOR SYL PUE SDIIJIDRY |EDIPAW [9ZIM] BY) YUM pajedosse sady [edaq pa1edpnqun
SISA[DUY 22UDLIDA

K4
T

(bov'L€)

0Z1'8€Y

¥81°0S

¥9T'6
88Y'6¥VE
¥81'6¢

95900V

962't
09€VTT
099
ovE‘T8C

YT0C ANNT
ang Ad

(€6€°T) (zve've) (£20'c€) (9L0°€2)
%bE'0 vSE'T 019’10V 952°00v 956'S9€
%100 2 7009% 866'SY otTE'9y
S %ST'88 vev'L 618 866 -
%£9°0- (oT0"?) ¥9€°0Z¢€ (AN 443 761S6C
%ES'E 6 7549t 808'S2 v6v'vT
(6£0'S) - 6L0'S -
%T0°0- (6€) 892°L9¢ 62¢°L9€ 088°TYE
3 % 0v- (685°T) 8€6'E 6vET 666'T
%LYT LEST 0£8'V0T £9€°90T S6T'T6
oL %18¢C- (os7) S09 SEY A4
%£0°0 €81 S68°45T 8L0'85¢ 0£6'8tZ
PIOZAYN  PIOZAVIN €102 AVW
DNVIHYA % FIONVIUVA ang ala "1V A1A *12V 1Al

(3xyaq)/sniding Sunesado

sasuadx3 |ejo]
uonepasdag
asuadxy 15a431ul [eusaiu|
dueuUdUlERN pue |euoniesadQ
sasuadx3 uoiesisiulwpy
sasuadx3 Adueynsuo)
sasuadx3y

awodu| |e10)
3WODU| 352J9IU| [BUIBIU|
awoou| J3Y10
sjuels) pue sajpisqns
sa1ey |BI3USY
awodu|
saiy|Pe4 Alunwwo)

T

YT0Z AVIN d3dN3 a0I1d3d 3HL ¥04
140d3Y ALIANILDY
TDNNOD 1I1Y1S1A JIZNINOVIN




40

(bL6°L6T)

9T/'91
(9£5'00¢)
988'8

(966°€)

(91L'9T)
¥81°0S
9/5°00€

(9£5'00¢)

(rov’LE)

YT0Z ANNT
ang Ad

%00°0

%00°0

FONVIHVA %

JONVIIVA

(61€'vLT) 58209 £80°101
£2€'ST 6TE'ST v22'0T
(82s'sLa) (vzs'es) -
988'S8 161201 £18°06
(£99°¢) (8v€T) TZO'ET
(eze'sT) (61€ST) (vee'ot)
200'9% 866°St 0TE9Y
875°SLT vTs'LS -
(825's£2) (vzs'Ls) -
(zve've) (Lzo'eg) (920°c2)
- - 19
PIOZAYWN  VIOZAVIN  €I0Z AV
ang ala 19V Q1A *10V a1A1

sansasay [eyde) jero)
sanIasay Sunesadp wouy uonepaldaq papund Jajsuet|
anJasay Sunessdo wouy ainyipuadx] jeyde) Jaysued)
2suejeg Suiuadp

SaAI953Y |ende)

san1asay SunesadQ jelol
anJasay |eyde) o3 uonerdaldag papund Jajsuel
SWwIaY| Ysed Uon aeq ppy
anlasay [eyde) o0y aunypuadxy jeude) Jajsues]
ainypuadx3y jeude) - yajsued
(31yaq)/snidins Sunesado
2suejeg uiuadQ

saniasay Junesadp

1T

Y102 AV G3AN3 GOIY¥3d JHL Y04
1¥0d3Y ALIAILY
TDNNOD 1O1Y1SIa JIZNINIVIN



Ly

_sus'oos

9£5'00€

vT0Z ANNT
ang Ad

%CT°6L
Pl AN TA

FONVIIVA %

£00°812 82S'SLT ves'Ls -
¥00'81¢ 875'SLT 1 ZAWAS) -
PTOZAYIN  PTOZAVIN €102 AVIN
FONVIHVA ang ala 19V AlA 12V Q1A1

13{10) [97iMm] [RIOL
ainyipuadxy jende)
191101 [Pzim ]
xade)

1T

102 AVIN QIGN3 AOI1Y3d IHL ¥04
140d3Y ALIAILV
FDNNOI LIYLSIA IIZNINOVIN



42

‘30UBLIRA D|QBINOAR) SIY] PRl sey s1aafoud diysumol uo ainlipuadxa paledidiiue ueyl Jamon
53502 anoqe| jood ay3
Sunaspng-1apun o} anp JeaA 3yl 40} {/0°ES JO UNIIBAO 1503 B 3q [|IM 2J3y]1 193pnq ay1 Jo Suiwug 8y} 03 anp 193png aAoge si sjood g ay3 Joy 51507 JuswiAo|dw]
2duelIeA 3|qBINOAR) SIY) 0}
paInguIu0d aAeYy (0L ‘VS) [00d 3ljdie4 wouy snuaaas pazedianue ueyy Jaysiy yum Suoje (598'9%) 241y [|eH odexa L woJ) anuaAal pajediue ueyy Jaysdiy

R4

T

SiIsAjpuy 23UDLIDA

(zLv'9s)

TLS'TEY'T

885'SCT
ovbLE
70’568 €
242'95¢
87¢'8L z

00T‘9EV’T

808'TT
9€5°48T I
9eL'0C
08€'960'T
0v9'61T

YT0C ANNT
ang Ad

(€26°€9) (992°1S) 6127 6508
%IE'Y vS6'8S T6T'89€'T  LE£T'60E'T  90T‘E9T'T
(e9t'T) - £9Y°T 80€
%00°0 9 68.'90C £8£°907 6CE'L6T
M %L60T ¥9L'E 0zEvE 955°0€ ¥15cE
%09'8 8650L L5078 6586, 86T VTL
3 %9L'T- (CYan ] 9T6'VET TH0'6€T 788'81¢
* %0L°ET- (9z8'6) 60LTL SES'T8 9/1'86
%8E°0- (696') SZH9TE‘T 9SH'TIE'T  PIT'TLZ'T
% %SE8L- (08t'8) ¥z8'0T A S16'6
%VLE EY'9 806'TLT OvE'8LT 15918
3¢ %TE0T- (096'T) 800°6T 8¥0°LT T6C'LT
%20'0 SET STO'SO0'T  0ST'S00'T  679'9S0°T
3¢ %60°T- (961°T) 0£9'60T ¥41'80T 6£9'S0T
PIOZAYIN  VIOZAVIN €102 AV
PDNVINVA% IONVIIVA  aNd dlA 19V 1A 19V d1A1

(aoyaq)/snidang Sunesado

sasuadxj |ejo)

sagJey) jeusaqu]
uonepasdaq

asuadx3 359423U1 |BUIBU|
2JuBUUIRIA pue [euonesad)
sasuadx3 uoneasiuiwpy
sasuadx3 yuawAojdw3

sasuadx3

3woduj [e10}

3WI0JU| 152J9JU| |BUIRU|
3awodu| Jaylo

Sjuelg pue salpisqns
sajey pajasie)

s9)ey |edausan

awoduy
sa1y|pey jeuoneanay

Y10C AVIA A3AN3 40IY3d 3HL 404
1¥0d3Y ALIAILDY
TIINNOD 1J1Y1SIA JIZNINIVIN




43

(620°296)

00€
760'T6
9LL'TS
(966°06)
(152'sT0T)

190°20T

(9££°28)
885'52¢
966°06

{000c6)

(966°06)

{zL1'9S)
122°8L

vI0Z INNT
ansg Ad

(98z‘0s0‘t) (zz1'18L) (£06°568)
8L£8Y 8.5'8S 8LT'SE
(€T¥'E8) (£5L'8vT) (109'82Y)
(1s7's10't)  (EV¥6°069) (¥8%'20S)
STT'8LT LOT'618 8€T'106
(82£'3Y) (8£5'8S) (8L1'sg)
682902 £8/'902 62€°L6T
£TY'ER £SL'8VT 109°82Y
(€Tt'e8) (£52'8YT) (t09'gTY)
(99£'18) 6T2°C 6508
08v'1TL £89'899 626°0€L
PTOZAVIN  PTOZAVIN  ET0Z AV
ang ala 1OV Q1A 10V a1

sansasay |ende) |e301
9AI959Y SunesadQ wouy aagsued]
ansy dO wouy/o - Jaysuel
sanlasay Sunesad wouy uoneaidag papung Jajsued|
aAJasay Juizesad wouy aunypuadxy jeyded uajsuel|
2ouejeg Suiuado

sanJasay |ende)

san1asay SunesadQ je10)
2A1953Y |eyde) 03 uonienaldag papund Jajsued]
SWwa}| Yyse) UoN oeq ppy
953y (eyde) 03 aunyipuadxy jeyde) Jajsued)
SINITSDY UDIM)DQ SJD)SuUBI]
aunypuadxy [ende) - 1ajsued]
(1242@)/snidang Sunesado
9duejeg SuiuadQ
santasay Sunesado

1T

YT0Z AVIA GIAN3 QOI1Y¥3d JHL H04
130d34 ALIALLY
TINNOI LI1YLSIA JIZNINOVIN



44

000'ST (ezv'1E) 0SL'ET €LT'SY 198°6v€ lleH ode)a] ejon
- - - - LLT'L6 uNno) siuua) Sunepnsay 'gL68Y 7T

- (€99°6T) - €99°6T (0) s3uip|ing - 135Sy ANUNWWO) "0S68YTT
000'ST ¥ %8981~ (¥699) 0SL'€T a2 A[4 - JB30 - SUY ) ANNUINY OY63YTT
- (990°s) - 990'S ¥89°75T apeaddn saJ) 1Bueloy L T68YZT
lleH odesat

966'6€ 76€'0E £99°9¢ 1479 - S2AI3S3Y [9ZIM] B30
966'6€ S %0678 76£°0€ £€99°9¢ 129 - spaloid 19430 "Z6T890T
SOAIDSOY |9ZIM ]

- - - - 89V TL diysumo] [92im) [BIOL
B - - - 89Y'TL ue|d yuawdo|aaaq jo wawajdw] "9TS8SS0

diysumo] azim}

- (208°28) - £08°(8 - diysumoy odeya} |eyol

- (£08L8) = L08'L8 - s18foag ue|d JuawdojaAaaq ‘1968750
diysumo) odexa]

000°0€ 00522 005°LT = 952'S diysumoy] a1pted [e30)
- - - - - $19sSY 0} J3jsuel) "66687S0

- - - = 957's apeaddn punoudhe|d "£L68TS0
000°0€ /* %00°00T 005°LT 00S°22 - - Sa1uBWY d1|qnd - 13SSY WWOD 'S9687S0

diysumo] atjaiey
aunyipuadx3 jende)
¥T0Z INNT YTOZ AVIN ¥T0Z AVIN €T0Z AVIN
ang Ad FINVIHVA % IONVIHVA ang aita 10V 1A 10V Qi1

YT0Z AVIN d3AN3 40I1¥3d 3HL Y04
140d3Y ALIALLDY
TINNOD LORMLSIA JIZNIHOVIN



45

966°06

000°€

000°€

000°€

000°€

YTO0Z ANNT
ang Ad

%00°0

%C8'CL

%C8CL-

FDNVIHVA %

(rrre's9) £Iv'e8 LSL8YT 109°82V
(€00'7) 0SL'C €SL'Y -
(€00'2) 0sL't €SL'y -
(£00'2) 0S.'C £€SL'Y 9107
- - - 9107
(€00'2) 0SL'T €SL'Y -
YIOZAVIN  VIOZAVIW  €T0Z AV
IDNVIIVA  aNng QiA "IDVALA 1DV AlAY

aanyipuadx3 jende) jejol

[00d [9Z1M [ |e10]
1ue|d "STZ8TYT
[00d 921

|00d ueuodyiens |exol
uawdinb3 pue jueld ‘5Z6307T
Jueld "'STZ80YT

|ood ueuodyiens

It

YT0Z AVIA Q3AN3 AOI1Y3d IHL 04
140d34 ALIANILIY
TIINNOD LOIYLSIA JIZNINIVIN



46

‘uawdo|anap odexa] ayl yum pajeldosse s3sod e8] pajradxa ueyl 1omo| 01 anp paledidijue uey) JaMo| aJe 53503 Adueynsuo)
pa12jdwod a1am s193png Jalye JaA0 UXE) Sem AJANDE Se PRlRSpNn( J0U SIJIAIIS UOIIBWIOLU| JO UOISIACI BY) UHM PIIBIDOSSE SIS0D)
juoJy 9xe| odexa] ay3 1e pue| pjos aaey 03 paaspng

“BuIp|Ing 313U SIONSIA BN DY JO UOISN|DUL BY] YHM SUINIDL |e3ual pajeddnue
uey saySiy sapnjoul os|y *pa1saAIRY 3q 03 Spuels Ailsa.uo) Suinbas Jeah sy ul JaijJea s8ewep puim 0] anp sajes A11sa10) PlREPNQUN JO SHE‘ESTS SIPNJIU|

T

SISAjpUY 35UDLIDA

0S6°£59

9Z6'LE8

878'TS
09T'LET
8VE‘09€
vv8°0TT
TPL'TST
¥00'9Z

9/8'S6Y'T

80€'8LT

(8zv'€00T)
000766
00048
¥00°596
768'61T
00T'SST

v10Z INNT
ang Ad

%16°0T
%88'C
%689
S %1607
i %V6'EE
S %YETY
%000

%St'6¢
I %8T'S-
¥{ %00°00T-
L %88°T8-
4 %6Y'¥09

%00°0
3¢ %V0°S-

FONVIHVA %

OT8‘EvE 522’089 E€v6'26T'T  (EVO'GEY)
vSt'v8 8Z8'ELL vLE'689 18L'T09
0LET 60S'LY 6519V 9/5'8Y
£59'8 0£L'sTT €L0°LTT £07'88
L20°9€ 61E'0EE 76T'v6T £0€'SET
I8Y'veE £09'T0T 9T1'49 955°19
v/8°6S 978'vrT 756'18 TS0'6VT
- LE8'ET LE8'ET ¥SSLT
(556°SS) - §56°SS 8£S'T
voz'sey €S0'vSP'T LTE'788'T 8€L°791
(£€9'8) 6v¥'€9T 7I8'YST 9£7'60T
608°6T6 (608'616) - -
(588°€T8) 000766 STT'08T (€zz's)
£80°78Y 0S.'6L £€8'T9S 9£5°08T
(Sy6'evT) L85'V88 wo'orL 8TE'CLL
- 106°60T 106'60T T28°L6
{091°2) SLTTVT STOSET (0S6°T66)
PTOZAVIN  PTOZAVIN  £I0Z AV
FONVIYVA ang alA 10V QLA 10V O1A1

(apyaqa)/snidans Sunesado

sasuadx3 jejo|

uonepaldag

9suadx3 359433uU] [eUIIU|
djueuajuley pue [euoneladp
sasuadx3 uonesisiuIwpy
s3suadxj Asueynsuo)
sasuadx3 siaquiap

sasuadxg yuswAodwy

sasuadxy

3woduj (0]

DWOdU| JSALDIUI [BUIRU|
2WIOJU| [eUIdIU|

$9SSOT pue sules 4yl
awodu| JaY10

9WODU| JUBWISIAU|
sajey pajadie]

s31ey [elauan

awoou|
SINAIDY [RIDIDWIIO)

YT0Z AVIN Q30N3 GOI143d IHL ¥04
140434 ALIAILY
TIINNOD LOIYLSIA ZNINOVIN




47

(s50°19) %000 - (898°0v) [45:%:741 (svyv'sty) san1asay |ende) (230
I z _ - 91153 |eay Wiy - Jajsuelt)
(z£09g) (990c€) (126°22) (66%'SST) $9AIRS3I SunesadQ wody Jasuel)

- - - - ansy dQ woJy/oy - 19jsuedt
- - - - 9953y SunesadQ wody - 1aysued]
{ooz's8) (05808) - - 9MIB5I9Y Bunesado wouy - Jdysuel)
- - - - Jeside) 01 S3a95Sy PIISAA Jajsued )
- - - - saniasay SunesadQ wouy uonedaudag papung Jdjsued),
- - - - pauJe] 1Sa.33u| - Jajsued ),
- - - - anlasay SunesadQ woay aunyipuadx] jeyde) Jagsuea |

LT2'E9 8V0€L €ETIST (9v6'262) aoueleg uiuadQ
SanIasay |eude)

brsey) %000 - £E1'8E 18L'006  (522'6€8) sansasay Junesado |e30)
B - (Tz6'70) - 3Jes pueq uo 159
- - - samiasay Sunesadg
- - - - S9AIDSIY UDIMID] Jajsuel)
- - - - uolnen|eaay
- - - - 39Sy |eyde) 01 35a433U| Jaysuel |
- - - - |ende) 031 51955y PIISOA Jajsued |
- - - - anlasay [ende) 03 uonepaldag papuny asjsued]
ov8'1s 0Ts'Ly 8L0'LY 9£5'8Y SWI3}| Yse) UON %eq ppy
- - - - aniasay [ende) 03 aunjipuadxy |eyde) Jajsuely
- - Alnb3 siaAedaiey 01 xade?) Jajsuel|

(z6t'6) (T0£'8) (8907} (z9gt2) 1s8193u] vopjerdosddy
{zr6'teL) (9€81L9) 126°TC 66%'SST SOAIDSDY UDIMIA] SIdsueL]
- - (986'STT) - ainypuadx3 [enden - saysuel)
056'£59 S22'089 €V6'Z6T'T  (EVO'6EY) (ypyaq)/snidans Sunesado
{(006°6) (520'6) (981'122) (068285) aouejeg Suluado
sanlasay Sunesado
¥T0Z INNT PIOZAVIN  vTOZAYIN  €T0T AVIN
ang Ad PDNVIYVA % FINVIYVA ang alA *10V QLA 1OV ALA1

YT0Z AVIA Q3AN3 OIY3d JHL ¥04
140d34 ALIAILDVY
TIDNNOI LOIYLSIA NZNINOVIN



48

v10Z INNT
ang A4

FONVIHVA %

- - £v5°922 (8€L°9)
- £v5'92¢ (8€£°9)
PIOZAVIN  PIOZAVIN  £T0Z AVW
DNVIHYA  dNg ala “1DVAiA DY ALA

xade) |ejo)
juawdolanag odexa.
xade)

1T

YT0Z AVIAl Q3AN3 Oid3d JHL ¥Od
13043y ALIAILDY
TDNNOD LO1Y1SIA JIZNINIOVIN



49

MACKENZIE DISTRICT COUNCIL

REPORT TO: FINANCE COMMITTEE

SUBJECT: ALPINE ENERGY LTD ANNUAL REPORT 31 MARCH 2014
MEETING DATE: 24 JULY 2014

REF: FIN 9/3/3

FROM: MANAGER FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION

ENDORSED BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

PURPOSE OF REPORT:
To brief Council on the results for Alpine Energy Ltd full year to 31 March 2014.

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:

1. That the report be received and the contents noted.

PAUL MORRIS WAYNE BARNETT
MANAGER FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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ATTACHMENTS:
Appendix 1 — Alpine Energy Ltd Annual report to 31 March 2014.

BACKGROUND:
Council is a shareholder in the Alpine Energy Ltd (AEL) Group with a shareholding of
4.96%.

RESULTS OVERVIEW:
The network delivered 752Gwh against 750Gwh for the same period last year.

Annual capex totalled $21.18million compared with budget of $22.21million.

Maintenance expenditure totalled $7.3million compared to a budget of $5.35million
with the increase largely attributable to responses to the severe weather events
throughout the year.

AEL had one serious harm incident that impacted on the organisation impeccable
Health & Safety record.

Earnings from operation after tax were $11.33million which was 3.8% higher than the
previous year of $10.90million.

Comprehensive income was $12.02million compared to $10.76million in 2013.
Group revenue was $53.59million, higher than the budgeted $50.67million.

Group expenses were $38.16million compared to a budget of $34.65million. This
was higher than budget due to the additional costs associated with the storm events
and also as a result of AEL subsidiary, NETcon winning an international project that
was not budgeted for.

Pre-tax surplus was lower than budget due mainly to accelerated write-off of old
metering assets of $0.43million and storm related costs of $1.0million plus.

Network reliability was materially impacted during the year by severe weather
events.

The total SAIDI (System Average Interruption Duration Index) for the year was 865
minutes. By way of comparison SAIDI for 2013 was 148 minutes and 2012 was 162
minutes.

The total SAIFI (System Average Interruption Frequency Index) was 2.22
interruptions while AEL'’s allowable limit is 1.69.

Interim dividends of 3.66 cents per share were paid in September and December
2013 and March 2014. A final fully imputed dividend will be paid on 31 July 2014.

CONCLUSION:
AEL investment has performed to expectation during the year.

2014-07-24 ael annual report to 31 march 2014



51

7 \

ALPINE ENERGY LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014



52

7 \

ALPINE ENERGY LIMITED

MISSION STATEMENT

To ensure continuing commercial success by:

«  Providing safe, reliable and efficient energy delivery
and infrastructure services

Our Values
We will:-

«  put health and safety first

» act environmentally responsibly

«  show respect, integrity, and honesty, to build trust
«  strive for professional excellence

«  contribute positively to the community

Alpine Staff participating in the Relay for Life
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Board of Directors
Seated: Steve Thompson (Chairman), Rick Ramsay
Standing from left to right: Alister France, Warren Larsen, Warren Bell

Executive Management Team
Front Row: Michael Boorer (Corporate Services Manager), Andrew Tombs (Chief Executive Officer)
Back Row: Sara Carter (Regulatory & Pricing Manager),Willem Rawlins (Network Manager),
Stephen Small (Compliance & Training Manager)
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A ANNUAL REVIEW

2013 Snow storm

OVERVIEW

Overall, Alpine Energy Limited (Alpine) had a better than expected year. In contrast to 2012/13, energy delivered
across the distribution network during the 2013/14 year was marginally higher despite the numerous severe
weather events impacting on supply of electricity to consumers.

The volume of energy delivered over Alpine’s distribution network was 752GWH which against the 2012/13
volume of 750GWH was 0.2% higher.

Network capital expenditure (capex) projects were interrupted several times during the year due to severe
weather events; however completion of high priority capex projects consolidated another year of solid
engineering and construction performance.

In addition, customer initiated work progressed well, the largest of which was the new 110kV transmission line,
and associated substation equipment, constructed between Alpine’s Bells Pond substation and Oceania Dairies
new milk processing plant north of Glenavy.

Including committed funds annual capex totalled $21.18million by 31 March 2014 against a planned budget
of $22.2 1million.

Maintenance expenditure (opex) ended the year at $7.30million against a budget of $5.35million. The difference
was mostly attributable to costs associated with responding to the severe weather events throughout the year.

On the Health and Safety front we were challenged during the year having to respond to a serious harm
incident which left an approved contractor hospitalised for a period of time after he made contact with a live
"11kV distribution line.

This incident tore at the heart of what is central to our operations and despite the exceptional response to the
incident, particularly from the injured workers colleagues on the day who administered first aid and called for
help, it’s an incident no one wants to have to face.

WorkSafe NZ investigated the incident and concluded that there were no grounds for prosecution to any party
involved. They did however indicate their interest in working with us to ensure remedial actions identified were
putin place.

Alpine Energy Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2014 3
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New distribution line to the Oceania Dairy Factory

The bedding in of Alpine’s new regulatory team has resulted in significantly enhanced efficiencies, particularly
around our ability to digest, contextualise, and respond in a more meaningful manner to the ever increasing
emphasis on regulatory governance.

Another area of enhancement has been in improvement in Company processes and systems, and alternately
information. The Company’s investment in advanced metering, new Geographic Information System (GIS), new
Supervisory Control And Data Acquisition (SCADA) system, and implementation of a new interface for outage
management {Avalanche), while in their infancy will over time improve the overall effectiveness and efficiency
of Alpine. On the horizon for 2014/15 is the next high priority business tool, that of a new ‘asset management
system.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

Board and management are embracing the Government's continued push in health and safety and have spent
considerable time educating ourselves, our staff, and stakeholders on the new WorkSafe regime.

Health and Safety features as the first item discussed in monthly reporting and between these reports directors
engage in differing aspects of the Company’s operations including attending parent and subsidiary health and
safety meetings from time to time.

SHAREHOLDER ENGAGEMENT
Alpine’s growth and operational aspirations wouldn't be possible without shareholder support. The Board
have invested considerable time in communicating with its shareholders the strategic journey for Alpine and
shareholders have reciprocated in kind.

Core to our communication is monthly reporting on underlying business performance as well as regular catch-
ups throughout the year to discuss and table views on the direction of Alpine.

The Board greatly appreciated the opportunity of regular catch-ups and feedback from shareholders and hope
that shareholders found them equally beneficial.

Alpine Energy Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2014
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Thefinancial performance for the Group asa measure
against financial targets set in the Company's
Statement of Corporate Intent saw the majority of
targets attained or bettered.

Earnings from operations after tax at $11.33million
was 3.8% higher than the level achieved in the
previous year ($10.90million).

Comprehensive income was favourable at
$12.02million against last year’s result of $10.76
million. Movement in retained earnings and
Company valuation continue to accrue satisfactorily.

Cooney Road Substation

Group revenues of $53.59million were higher against

a budget of $50.67million. Group expenses at $38.16million against a budget of $34.65million were also high,
mostly as a result of the additional costs associated with storm damage and also expenses associated with
Alpine subsidiary NETcon winning an international project that was not budgeted for at the beginning of the
year. This expense also attracted additional revenue through chargeable work.

Pre-tax surplus was lower than budget due mostly to an accelerated write off of old metering assets which
accounted for an additional $0.43million of depreciation, and storm related costs well in excess of $1million.

NETWORK OPERATIONS

Major capital works on network infrastructure accounted for expenditure of $21.18million during the year and
included:

$8.4million associated with Oceania Dairies milk processing factory
$2.6million in new subdivisions and extensions, and transformers
$1.5million on line and pole upgrades

$1.5million on mobile 33/11kV substation

$1.4million on backup generation units

$5.7million in numerous smaller projects and 2012/13 carryover capex

Of particular mention was the completion of the new 110kV transmission line which is Alpine’s first asset at this
high voltage level; and the purchasing of a mobile substation and backup diesel generators.

Major network capital for 2014/15 is budgeted at $16.72million and maintenance is budgeted at $5.35million.

RELIABILITY AND PERFORMANCE

Our reliability was materially impacted this year by severe weather events. When the SAIDI minutes from these
events are combined with SAIDI minutes accrued for other unplanned events and planned work we ended the
year with a SAIDI figure of 865 minutes.

While this result is well in excess of performance during recent years, that being 148 SAIDI minutes during
2012/13 and 162 SAIDI minutes in 2011/12, we have not breached the quality standard under the default price-
quality path. The quality standard applies a‘two-out-of-three rule’ that recognises the impact of events beyond
our control, such as severe weather events, on overall performance.

At 2.22 interruptions SAIFI was higher than our allowable limit (at 1.69 interruptions); again this result is mostly
due to the impact of severe weather events throughout the year.

NETCON LIMITED

NETcon, a 100% wholly owned subsidiary of Alpine, provides the backbone of contracted field services for
Alpine. Engagement with Alpine has historically been through a service level agreement between the two

Alpine Energy Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2014
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September storm damage

companies, however this will be enhanced as the two companies move to an Alliancing Agreement approach
to engagement during FY15.

NETcon continued to grow its revenue by leveraging off the expertise, knowledge, and capabilities it has
amassed as a successful contracting company.

NETcon’s subsidiary NETcon International was successful in winning a contract from the Ministry of Foreign
Affairs and Trade (MFAT) for an Off-Grid solar array generation scheme in Rarotonga (work to commence during
2014). This is the second major contract NETcon have won through MFAT. The first was an Off-Grid solar array
generation scheme for the Afghanistan township of Bamyan which was awarded in 2013. This project is a major
undertaking and NETcon expects to successfully complete the project during 2014.

The company was also successful at tendering and winning electricity distribution services and provision of
network material supplies to the small pacific nation of Nauru.

Leading the exciting growth stage of NETcon is newly appointed CEQ Murray Wall who took up the challenge
from December 2013.

The results of NETcon are consolidated into the Group for the twelve month period ending 31 March 2014.

ROCKGAS TIMARU LIMITED
Alpine has a 50% interest in Rockgas Timaru Limited.

Rockgas Timaru continues to be a successful provider of LPG to South Canterbury. This creates the opportunity
for energy users to consider alternative energy options, and to diversify their energy requirements with a viable
alternative, particularly for space and water heating.

FACILITIES AND THE COMMUNITY

As with previous years Alpine continued its active community involvement by sponsoring various facilities
and events, which enhance the sporting and recreational life of the region, as well as providing personal
development scholarships. Similarly to last year, in excess of 100 people benefited from personal development
scholarships during the year.

Alpine Energy Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2014
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CORE INFRASTRUCTURE

In March 2014 the company re-released its Asset Management Plan (AMP) as a continuation of the AMPs
released 2010 through 2013. This is a key document to Alpine and is arguably the most referred to source of
information throughout the year. Not only is it used for regulatory purposes but is also cornerstone to the
strategic and operational emphasis Alpine has identified looking forward.

The AMP identifies areas of significant network investment, with $107.1million forecast over the next 10 years
in network capital expenditure (capex) and $49.7million in network operational expenditure.

The level of peak network infrastructure capex, referred to as the ‘wall of wire' effect, is likely to be repeated
approximately every 50 to 60 years.

OTHER BUSINESS

The Company continues to explore opportunities beyond delivering energy to our consumers.

Of interest is the continued development and reach of renewable energy generation, particularly solar. During
the previous financial year Alpine commissioned a trial solar site on the roof of its Tekapo substation. To date
this site has produced 7.6MWh which at first glance might sound impressive. However, daily data shows huge
volatility in its output, particularly when the sun is shielded by clouds or adverse atmospheric conditions.
During the hours of low sun light and darkness production reduces to zero.

We intend to continue gathering data from the site and monitor its performance over 2014/15.

STAFF AND BOARD

Alpine is fortunate to have a highly dedicated and competent team of people who plan, design, operate,
control, and administer the Group activities.

Underpinning these activities are the Company’s vision and strategic plan; and thanks is given to the Board and
Management for their role in making implementation of these successful.

Directors are pleased to welcome back Alister France to the Board who was successfully re-appointed by Alpine
shareholder, LineTrust South Canterbury.

IN CONCLUSION

The Company responded well to the challenges during 2013/14, not the least of which was the unprecedented
level of severe weather events.

Alpine is well prepared for continuation of reinforcing and strengthening its core network infrastructure and
responding to the needs of current and future generations of South Canterbury consumers.

Alpine’s balance sheet remains strong and shareholder value continues to accrue satisfactorily.

We thank you for your continued support and we look forward to completing another successful year.

W
= Y
C/,
Mr S.R. Thompson Mr A.G. Tombs
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
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2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Operating Revenue 53,590 46,035 39,555 38,521 38,001
Associate Entities' Earnings (37) 124 138 128 14
Operating Surplus before Tax 15,396 15,424 12,847 13,119 14,288
Taxation (4,071) (4,518) (3,496) (4,118) (3,997)
Net Surplus 11,325 10,906 9,351 9,001 10,291
Shareholder Distribution 7,563 7,563 7,563 7,815 7,794

FINANCIAL POSITION

Current Assets 6,306 3,827 3,500 3 515 6,376
Non-Current Assets 183,092 161,272 152,480 134,037 119,956
Total Assets 189,398 165,099 155,980 137,552 126,332
Liabilities 73,307 53,466 47,543 31,058 20,873
Net Assets 116,092 111,633 108,437 106,494 105,459
Share Capital 41,328 41,328 41,328 41,328 41,328
Retained Earnings 74,764 70,305 67,109 65,166 64,131
Equity 116,092 111,633 108,437 106,494 105,459

FINANCIAL RATIOS

Net Surplus to Average Shareholders Equity 9.9% 9.9% 8.7% 8.5% 10.0%
Tangible Assets per Share $4.58 $3.99 $3.79 $3.33 $3.06
Earnings per Share (cents) 274 26.4 226 218 249
Dividend per Share (cents) 18.3 183 183 18.9 18.9
STATISTICS

SAIDI (System Average Interruption Duration Index) 275 148 162 226 332
SAIFI (System Average Interruption Frequency Index) 2.00 1.30 1.26 174 218

Note: All financial figures have been prepared in accordance with NZ IFRS.
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GENERAL DISCLOSURES

Principal Activities

The principal activity of Alpine Energy Limited (the Company) is ownership of its electricity distribution network. The Group,
comprising Alpine Energy Limited and its subsidiaries (NetCon Limited and Timaru Electricity Limited) and associated
entities (Rockgas Timaru Limited and On Metering Limited) also undertakes asset management and contract services.

Review of Operations

Group Operating Revenue of $53.59 million was achieved for the year, 16.4% greater than the previous year.

The Group Operating Surplus before tax for the year is $15.396 million, 0.2% less than the previous year.

Review of Financial Performance

The financial statements presented have been prepared in accordance with the Accounting Policies forming part of these
Financial Statements.

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

GROUP PARENT
2014 2013 2014 2013
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Operating Surplus Before Tax 15,396 15,424 16,027 15,317
Income Tax (4,071) (4,518) (4,011) (4,412)

Net Surplus after Income Tax
attributable to the Shareholders 11,325 10,906 12,016 10,905

SHARE CAPITAL

Total issued and paid up capital as at the 315t March 2014 was 41,328,017 Ordinary Fully Paid Shares. There have been no
movements in share capital during the year.

DIVIDENDS

Interim dividends, each of 3.66 cents per share, were paid in September and December 2013 and March 2014.

A fully imputed final dividend of $3.025 million will be paid on 315t July 2014 to all shareholders on the company’s register
at the close of business on the 215t July 2014. This dividend is included in the dividends for the year of $7.6 million, and
has been provided for.

Solvency certificates were completed in support of the interim dividend declarations on 26th September and 28th
November 2013 and 27th March 2014, and the final dividend solvency certificate will be submitted to Directors for approval
on the 215t July 2014.

The interim and final dividends relating to 2013/14 represent 120.6% of the Profit from Operations for the Group, excluding
customer contributions.

RETURN ON SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND STATE OF AFFAIRS

The Group net surplus after income tax attributable to the shareholders for the year ended 315t March 2014 represents 9.9%
return on average total shareholders equity.

The Directors are of the opinion that the state of affairs of the company is satisfactory.

Alpine Energy Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2014
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group operates under a set of corporate governance principles designed to ensure the Group is effectively
managed.

Board of Directors

The Board is the governing body of Alpine Energy Limited and currently has five members. The Board is appointed by
shareholders to oversee the management of the Company and is responsible for all corporate governance matters. The
Board endeavours to ensure that the activities undertaken are carried out in the best interests of all shareholders, while
respecting the rights of other stakeholders. The Board met ten times during the financial year.

Operation of the Board

The Board is responsible for the management, supervision and direction of the company. This incorporates the long-term
strategic financial plan, strategic initiatives, budgets and policy framework. The Board has developed and maintains clear
policies which define the individual and collective responsibilities of the Board and management.

Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee, comprising the full Board, reviews the Company’s financial statements and announcements.
It also liaises with the external auditors and reviews internal controls which are relevant to financial reporting and related
matters. This Committee is chaired by Mr Larsen.

DIRECTORS

Parent Subsidiaries Associates

Mr S. R. Thompson (Chairman) Mr S. R. Thompson (Chairman) Mr R. D. Ramsay
Mr R. D. Ramsay Mr R. D. Ramsay Mr A. J. France
MrW.A. Larsen MrW. A, Larsen Mr A.G. Tombs
Mr A. J. France Mr A. J. France Mr M.F. Boorer
Mr W. J. Bell MrW. J. Bell

Mr M. F. Boorer

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

The following directors of companies within the Group have declared interests in identified entities as shareholder and/
or director. The declaration serves as notice that the Director may benefit from any transactions between the Company or
Group and the identified entities.

Name Name of Company/Entity Interest

Mr S. R. Thompson Abbey Field Construction Ltd Shareholder
Andgra Limited Shareholder
Aspiring Guides Ltd Shareholder
Best View Limited Director
Cairnmuir Road Winery Ltd Director
Canterbury Aluminium Ltd Director
Deloitte Partner
Deloitte Ltd Director
EAL Investments Ltd Shareholder
Ellisons Aluminium Ltd Director
Ellisons Aluminium Central Ltd Director
F.S. Investments Ltd Director
Integrated Contract Solutions Ltd Director
McKenzie Architects Limited Shareholder
Millenium Solutions Ltd Director
Minaret Resources Ltd Director
NetCon Limited Chairman
NetCon International Limited Chairman
OB Horn Company Ltd Shareholder
Prospectus Nominees Director
Prospectus Nominees Services Ltd Director
Richard E. Shackleton Architects Ltd Shareholder
Southern Aluminium Joinery Ltd Director
Timaru Electricity Ltd Chairman
Thompson Bloodstock Ltd Chairman
Wanaka Bay Ltd Director
Westminster Resources Ltd Director
Whitestone Contracting Limited Director

Mr R. D. Ramsay Energy Mad Ltd Chairman
NetCon Limited Director
NetCon International Limited Director
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Name Name of Company/Entity Interest
Mr R. D. Ramsay (continued)
Pukaki Airport Board Member
Rockgas Timaru Ltd Director
Salmon Smolt New Zealand Ltd Director
Mr A. J. France Geraldine Bus Services Trust Chairman
Geraldine Licensing Trust Trustee
Holbrook Trust Trustee
NetCon Limited Director
NetCon International Limited Director
The Juicy Tree Co Ltd Director
Rockgas Timaru Ltd Director
MrW. A. Larsen Centre Port Group Ltd Chairman
J.M. Bostok Ltd Director
Larsen Consultancy Services Ltd Principal
NetCon Limited Director
NZAEL Limited Chairman

Zespri Remuneration Committee

Director/Member

MrW. J. Bell Bilderford Holdings Ltd Director
C.H.C. Properties Ltd Director
Golf Links Holdings Ltd Director
Hallenstein Glasson Group of Companies Chairman
Meadow Mushrooms Group of Companies Director
NetCon Limited Director
Ryman Healthcare Director
Sabina Ltd Director
Selwyn District - Rolleston Industrial Park Committee Member
St Georges Hospital Chairman
Warren Bell Ltd Director

Mr A. G. Tombs Smart Co Director

Mr M. F. Boorer Rockgas Timaru Ltd Alternative Director
Timaru Electricity Ltd Director
On Metering Ltd Director
Smart Co Director
South Canterbury District Health Board Member

No material contracts involving Directors’ interests were entered into after the end of the previous financial year or existed
at the end of the financial year other than the transactions detailed in note 21 to the financial statements.

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

The Company continues to indemnify all directors named in this report against any liability to any person other than the
Company or a related company for any act done or omission made in a Director’s capacity as a Director of the Company,
and all costs incurred in defending or settling any claim or proceedings related to such liability, unless the liability is criminal
liability or liability for breach of Section 131 of the Companies Act 1993.

During the financial year the Company paid insurance premiums in respect of directors, and officers'liability insurance. The
policies do not specify the premium for individual directors and executive officers.

The directors’ and officers’ liability insurance provides cover against all costs and expenses involved in defending legal
actions and any resulting payments arising from a liability to persons (other than the Company or a related body corporate)

incurred in their position as director or executive officer unless the conduct involves a wilful breach of duty or an improper
use of inside information or position to gain advantage.

DONATIONS

Donations paid during the year totalled $13,680 (2012/2013 $54,764).

Alpine Energy Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2014
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USE OF COMPANY INFORMATION

There were no notices from Directors of the Company requesting to use Company information received in their capacity
as Directors which would not otherwise have been available to them.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS FROM THE COMPANY

Parent Subsidiaries Associates Total
S.R. Thompson 80,000 - - 80,000
R.D. Ramsay 42,000 - 1,500 43,500
W.A. Larsen 46,200 - - 46,200
A.J. France 42,000 - 1,500 43,500
W.J. Bell 42,000 - = 42,000
252,200 - 3,000 255,200

Mr Boorer did not receive any remuneration directly related to the position of Director of a Subsidiary Company that
he held for a period during the year.

No Director of the Company has, since the end of the previous financial year, received or become entitled to receive
a benefit, (other than a benefit included in the total emoluments received or due and receivable by Directors shown in
the financial statements) other than those due in the ordinary course of business.

EMPLOYEE REMUNERATION

Details of remuneration ranges for employees of the Group are:-

Remuneration Range Number of Employees
$100,000-$109,999
$110,000-$119,999
$120,000-$129,999
$130,000-5$139,999
$140,000-$149,999
$150,000-5159,999
$160,000-5$169,999
$180,000-$189,999
$190,000- $199.999
$250,000-$259,999
$270,000-$279,999
$310,000-$319,999

_ e e N = NN WO 00O

AUDITORS

In accordance with Section 45 of the Energy Companies Act 1992, the Auditor-General is responsible for the audit of Alpine
Energy Limited. In accordance with Section 29 of the Public Finance Act 1977, the Auditor-General has contracted the audit
of Alpine Energy Limited to Mark Bramley, using the staff and resources of PricewaterhouseCoopers. The audit fee for the
Group for 2013/14 is $97,877 (2012/13 $103,090).

=

Mr S. R. Thompson Mr A. J. France
Chairman Director
29 May 2014
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The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company and the Group at 31 March 2014 and their financial performance and cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

The Directors consider that the financial statements of the Company and Group have been prepared using
appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable judgements and estimates,
and that all relevant reporting and accounting standards have been met.

The Directors believe that proper accounting records have been kept which enable, with reasonable accuracy,
the determination of the financial position of the Company and Group and facilitate compliance of the financial

statements with the Financial Reporting Act 1993.

The Directors consider they have taken adequate steps to safeguard the assets of the Company and Group and
to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the financial statements of Alpine Energy Limited and Group for the
year ended 31 March 2014.

For and on behalf of the Directors,

P AV %@M&

Mr S.R. Thompson Mr A.J. France
Chairman Director

Alpine Energy Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2014
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7 \ STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

GROUP PARENT
NOTE 2014 2013 2014 2013
$'000 $’'000 $'000 $'000

Revenue 4 53,590 46,035 51,304 45,896
Expenses 5

Transmission 11,871 10,765 11,871 10,765
Depreciation Amoritisation and Loss on Disposal 6,041 5478 5,491 4,930
Contract Services 6,853 4,714 F119 6,134
Employee Benefits 9,648 8,000 4,976 4,520
Interest 1,403 1,046 1,403 1,046
Other 2,341 732 3,818 3,184

38,157 30,735 35,287 30,579

Operating Surplus From Continuing Activities 15,433 15,300 16,027 15317
Share of Profit/(Loss) from Joint Ventures (37) 124 - -
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 15,396 15,424 16,027 15317
Taxation 6 4,071 4,518 4,011 4,412
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 11,325 10,906 12,016 10,905

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Gain/(Loss) on Revaluation of Land And Buildings 437 156 - -
437 156 - s

Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss

Gain/(Loss) on Interest Rate Swap 259 (303) 259 (303)
259 (303) 259 (303)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 12,021 10,759 12,275 10,602
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CONTRIBUTED OTHER HEDGE RETAINED TOTAL
EQUITY RESERVES RESERVE EARNINGS EQUITY

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
PARENT
Balance as at 1 April 2012 41,328 5 106 66,532 107,966
Comprehensive Income
Profit from Operations - - - 10,905 10,905
Other Comprehensive Income . - (303) = (303)
- (303) 10,905 10,602
Transactions with Owners
Dividends - - - (7,563) (7,563)
Balance as at 31 March 2013 41,328 - (197) 69,874 111,005
Balance as at 1 April 2013 41,328 - (197) 69,874 111,005
Comprehensive Income
Profit from Operations . - - 12,016 12,016
Other Comprehensive Income - - 259 - 259
- - 259 5 259
Transactions with Owners
Dividends - - - (7,563) (7,563)
Balance as at 31 March2014 41,328 - 62 74,328 115,718
GROUP
Balance as at 1 April 2012 41,328 1,702 106 65,301 108,437
Comprehensive Income
Profit from Operations - - - 10,906 10,906
Other Comprehensive Income - 156 (303) - (147)
- 156 (303) 10,906 10,759
Transactions with Owners
Dividends - - - (7,563) (7,563)
Balance as at 31 March 2013 41,328 1,858 (197) 68,644 111,633
Balance as at 1 April 2013 41,328 1,858 (197) 68,644 111,633
Comprehensive Income
Profit from Operations = - - 11,325 11,325
Other Comprehensive Income - 437 259 = 696
- 437 259 - 12,021
Transactions with Owners
Dividends ~ = - (7,563) (7,563)
Balance at 31 March 2014 41,328 2,295 62 72,408 116,092
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A\‘ BALANCE SHEETS AS AT 31 MARCH 2014
GROUP PARENT
NOTE 2014 2013 2014 2013
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
EQUITY
Share Capital 7 41,328 41,328 41,328 41,328
Reserves 2,356 1,661 62 (197)
Retained Earnings 72,408 68,644 74,328 69,874
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY 116,092 111,633 115,718 111,005
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 655 111 540 -
Trade and Other Receivables 8 4,598 2,621 2,559 1,917
Inventories 948 825 & &
Work In Progress 105 270 - o
Tax Prepaid 587 - 682 -
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 6,893 3,827 3,780 1,917
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bank Overdraft - - - 3
Trade and Other Payables 9 6,669 6,421 7,461 719N
Employee Entitlements 1,338 1,281 533 461
Dividends Payable 3,025 3,025 3,025 3,025
Tax Payable - 769 - 607
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 11,032 11,496 11,018 11,287
NET WORKING CAPITAL (4,139) (7,669)  (7,238) (9,370)
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in Subsidiary 11 - = 30 30
Investments Accounted for Using the Equity Method 12 56 292 5 5
Property, Plant and Equipment 13 180,337 160,756 173,761 154,558
Investment Property 14 - - 6,030 5,330
Intangible Assets 15 192 224 157 176
Related Party Loan 10 2,507 - 6,593 2,644
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 183,092 161,272 186,576 162,743
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Net Deferred Tax 6 18,595 16,709 19,353 17.108
Interest Rate Swap 19 (62) 197 (62) 197
Loans 16 44,329 25,064 44,329 25,064
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 62,862 41,970 63,620 42,369
NET ASSETS 116,092 111,633 115,718 111,005




f“’l \ STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

69

NOTES

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash was provided from:

Receipts from customers

Interest Received

Cash was applied to:
Payments to suppliers
Income Tax Paid

Net GST Paid
Interest Paid

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash was provided from:

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

Dividends Received

Cash was applied to:

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Investment in Associated Entities

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash was provided from:

Loan from Bank

Repayment of Loan to Subsidiary

Cash was applied to:

Dividend Paid

CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH HELD

Add opening cash brought forward

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR

Alpine Energy Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2014

GROUP PARENT
2014 2013 2014 2013
$’000 $'000 $’'000 $'000
52,030 45,076 50,371 45,650
4 25 174 174
52,034 45,101 50,545 45,824
(30,816)  (20,994) (28,094)  (20,956)
(3,289) (2,300) (3,054) (2,159)
(226) 349 (32) (47)
(1,403) (1,046) (1,403) (1,046)
(35,734)  (23,991) (32,583)  (24,208)
18 16,300 21,110 17,962 21,616
387 37 377 27
200 100 200 100
(25,538)  (14,233) (25,747)  (14,599)
(2,507) 2 (3,950) z
(27,458) (14,096) (29,120) (14,472)
19,265 (90) 19,265 (90)
- - - 1,085
(7,563) (7,563) (7,563) (7,563)
11,702 (7,653) 11,702 (6,568)
544 (639) 543 576
111 750 (3) (579)
655 111 540 (3)
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7 \ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Alpine Energy Limited (the Company), and its subsidiaries and associates (together the Group) is the owner of an electricity distribution
network, and also undertakes assets management contracting services.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in New Zealand. The address of its registered office is

31 Meadows Road, Washdyke, Timaru.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 May 2014.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in New Zealand. They
comply with the New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS), the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and other applicable Financial Reporting Standards, as appropriate for profit oriented entities.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the group have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
in New Zealand ('NZ GAAP’). They comply with New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (‘NZ IFRS’)
and other applicable Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable for profit-oriented entities. The consolidated financial statements
also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS’).

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

Entities reporting

The financial statements for the 'Parent’ are for Alpine Energy Limited as a separate legal entity. The consolidated financial
statements for the 'Group' are for the economic entity comprising Alpine Energy Limited, its subsidiaries and associates. The
Company and Group are designated as profit oriented entities for financial reporting purposes.

Statutory base

Alpine Energy Limited is a company registered under the Companies Act 1993,

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Financial Reporting Act 1993 and
the Companies Act 1993.

Functional and presentation currency

The Company's and Group's financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars, which is the Company's and Group's
functional and presentation currency.

Historical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
certain assets as identified in specific accounting policies below.

(b) Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying the entity's accounting policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with NZ IFRS requires management to make certain critical accou nting
estimates and judgements that affect the application of policies and reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and

expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions have been based on historical experience and other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates and judgements formed the basis for making judgements about the
carrying values of assets and liabilities, where these are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Estimates and underlying judgements are regularly reviewed. Any changes to estimates are recognised in the period if the
change affects that period, or in future periods if the change also affects future periods.

In the process of applying the Company's and Group's accounting policies, management has made the following estimates and
Jjudgements that have had the most significant impact on the amounts recognised in these financial statements:

Bamyan Renewable Energy Project Partnership
No profit share accrual was recognised in the current or prior year due to uncertainty over the remaining costs and final expected
profits.

Joint arrangements

Alpine Energy holds 50% of the voting rights of its joint arrangement. The group has joint control over this arra ngement as under
the contractual agreements, unanimous consent is required from all parties to the agreements for all relevant activities.

The group’s joint arrangement is structured as a limited company and provides the group and the parties to the agreements with
rights to the net assets of the limited company under the arrangements. Therefore, this arrangement is classified as a joint venture.

Investment property valuation
Investment property valuations are based on fair values determined using market evidence. Refer to note 14 for further details on
the assumptions and judgements used in determining the fair value of this asset.

Meters
The useful life of the legacy meters has been shortened to allow for the change to a new smart meters. The depreciation has been
accelerated to reflect this change.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Network reticulation assets’ depreciation rates in the ODV Handbook issued by the Commerce Commission in 2004.
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7 \ OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Principles of consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of Alpine Energy Limited as at 31 March
2014 and the results of all subsidiaries for the year then ended. Alpine Energy Limited and its subsidiaries together are referred to
in these financial statements as the Group or the consolidated entity. Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the group has control. The group controls an entity when the group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases. The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the
date of exchange. Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the
extent of any minority interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the Group's share of the fair value of the identifiable
net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the income statement. Intercompany transactions,
balances and unrealised gains on transactions between subsidiary companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of the impairment of the asset transferred.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

(i) Joint Arrangements

The group has applied NZ IFRS 11 to all joint arrangements as of 1 April 2013. Under NZ IFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements
are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and obligations of each investor. Alpine
Energy Ltd has assessed the nature of its joint arrangement and determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted
for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint venture are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements in other in other comprehensive income. When the group's
share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests that,

in substance, form part of the group’s net investment in the joint ventures), the group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the group’s interest in

the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the group. This has been applied from 1 April 2013.

The Group only has one joint venture as at 31 March 2014 and this arrangement was entered into during the current financial year.
The accounting policy is therefore not applicable to previous years.

(d) Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value, of consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and services, excluding Goods and
Services Tax, rebates and discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group. Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and when specific criteria have been
met for each of the group’s activities as described below.

(i) Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when a Group entity has delivered a product to the customer. Retail sales are usually
in cash or by bank transfer. The recorded revenue is the gross amount of sale.

(i) Sales of services
Sales of services are recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered, by reference to completion
of the specific transaction assessed on the basis of the actual service provided as a proportion of the total services to be
provided.

(iii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired,
the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on
impaired loans is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss.

(iv) Construction contracting
Contract revenue and expenses related to individual construction contracts are recognised on completion of
each contract on a monthly basis.

(v) Rental income
Rental income is recognised on an accruals basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements.

(vi) Dividendincome
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

(vii) Grants
Assets constructed for which a government grant is received are recorded net of the grant. Grants received are
recognised in the Income Statement when the requirements under the grant agreement have been met. Any grants for
which the requirements under the grant agreement have not been completed are carried as liabilities until all the conditions
have been fulfilled.

(e) Capital and operating expenditure
Capital expenditure relates to expenditure incurred in the creation of a new asset and expenditure incurred on existing
reticulation system assets to the extent the system is enhanced.

Operating expenditure is that expenditure incurred in maintaining and operating the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group.
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7 \ OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f) Taxation

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date
in the countries where the company's subsidiaries and associate's operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Company and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

(g) Goods and Services Tax (GST)
The Statement of Comprehensive Income has been prepared so that all components are stated exclusive of GST. All items in
the Balance Sheet are stated net of GST, with the exception of receivables and payables, which include GST invoiced.

(h) Leases

(i) The Group is the lessee
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

(ii) The Group is the lessor
Assets leased to third parties under operating leases are included in property, plant and equipment in the balance sheet. They are
depreciated over their expected useful lives on a basis consistent with similar owned property, plant and equipment. Rental
income (net of any incentives given to lessees) is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(i) Impairment of non financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life including goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment irrespective of whether any circumstances identifying a possible impairment have been identified. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

(j) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term,

highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities on the Balance Sheet.

(k) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, less provision for

doubtful debts. Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectible are
written off. A provision for doubtful receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference

between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective

interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognised in the income statement.

(I) Investments and other financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans

and receivables, held to maturity investments and available for sale financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the investments were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at the initial recognition and
re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
This category has two sub categories: financial assets held for trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss at
inception. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so
designated by management. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in
this category are classified as current assets if they are either held for trading or are expected to be realised within 12 months of
the balance sheet date.
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7 \ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(ii) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They arise when the Group provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of
selling the receivable. They are included in current assets, except for those with maturities greater than 12 months after
the balance sheet date which are classified as non-current assets. The Group's loans and receivables comprise ‘trade and other
receivables, ‘cash and cash equivalents, and 'other investments' in the balance sheet.

(iii) Held to maturity investments
Held to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities
that the Group's management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

(iv) Available for sale financial assets
Available for sale financial assets are non derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in
any other categories. They are included in non current assets unless management intends to dispose of the investment
within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Recognition and Measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date - the date on which the group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive

cash flows from the investments to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' category are
presented in the income statement within ‘other (losses)/gains-net’ in the period in which they arise. Dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through the profit or loss is recognised in the income statement as part of other income when the groups right to
receive payments is established.

Impairment

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets
is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a 'loss event') and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the group uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an impairment losss include:

- Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;
+  Abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments.
+ It becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

The group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated Statement

of Comprehensive Income. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument's fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtors credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(m) Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group entities at exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated
to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised
in the profit or loss. Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented in
the statement of comprehensive income with 'finance income' or cost. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
within 'other (losses)/gains-net!

(n) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value.

(o) Contract work in progress
Contract work in progress is stated at cost less amounts invoiced to customers. Cost includes all expenses directly related
to specific contracts.

(p) Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising freehold office buildings, is held for long term rental yields and is not occupied by
the group. Investment property is carried at fair value, representing open market value determined annually by external valuers.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. If the information is not available, the group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on less

active markets or discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are approved annually by G.A. Morton. Changes in fair values
are recorded in the income statement as part of other income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(p) Investment properties (continued)
Land held under operating lease is classified and accounted for as an investment property when the rest of the definition is met.
The operating lease is accounted for as if it were a finance lease.

(q) Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment (except land and buildings) is stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment.

Land and buildings are recorded at the revalued net current value resulting from revaluations carried out annually by a registered
valuer. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included
in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of land and buildings are credited to other reserves in shareholders' equity.
Decreases that offset previous increases are charged against other reserves directly in equity; all other decreases are charged to the
income statement. Each year the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying among of the asset charged to

the income statement and depreciation based on the assets' original cost is transferred from 'other reserves' to 'retained earnings!

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using Straight Line method so as to expense the
cost of the assets to their residual values over their estimated useful lives. The rates are as follows:

. Reticulation system 14% - 10.0%
»  Meters and Relays 667% - 15.0%
. Plant and Equipment 75% - 50.0%

The assets’ residual value and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate at each balance sheet date.
Capital work in progress is not depreciated until commissioned.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in other reserves are transferred to retained earnings.

(r) Intangible assets

Software costs

Software costs have a finite useful life. Software costs are capitalised and written off over the useful economic life of 2 to 5 years.
Software costs are amortised on a Straight Line basis.

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programs are recognised as an expense as incurred. Costs that
are directly associated with the production of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Group, and that will
probably generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as intangible assets. Direct costs include the
costs of software development employees and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Easements

Assets sited on easements will normally be renewed at the end of their economic life in the same location that they are currently
housed. On this basis the easement itself has an infinite life. Easements are recorded at cost and are tested annually for any sign of
impairment and whenever there is an indicator of impairment.

(s) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are
unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are recognised at
fair value.

(t) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance
sheet date.

(u) Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

(v) Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and rental obligations are recognised when the Group has a present legal or the
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Where there
are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(w) Employee benefits

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave, and accumulating sick leave expected to be
settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in other payables in respect of employees’ services up to the
reporting date and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Liabilities for non-
accumulating sick leave are recognised when the leave is taken and measured at the rates paid or payable. The liability for
employee entitlements is carried at the present value of the estimated future cash flows.

(x) Dividends
Dividend distribution to the Company shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Company’s and Group's financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

(y) Reserves and retained earnings

Cash flow hedging reserve

The hedging reserve is used to record gains or losses on a hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge that is recognised directly in
equity. The amounts are recognised in profit and loss when the associated hedged transaction affects profit and loss.
Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve is used to recognise the movements in fair value of property, plant and equipment.

(z) New standards first applied in the period

The group has adopted External Reporting Board Standard A1 Accounting Standards Framework (For-profit Entities Update)
(XRB A1). XRB A1 establishes a for-profit tier structure and outlines which suite of accounting standards entities in different tiers
must follow. The group is a Tier 1 entity. There was no impact on the current or prior year financial statements.

(aa) New and amended standards adopted by the group
The following standards have been adopted by the group for the first time for the financial year beginning 1 April 2013 and have a
material impact on the group.

= Amendment to NZ IAS 1, ‘Financial statement presentation’ regarding other comprehensive income. The main change
resulting from these amendments is a requirement for entities to group items presented in ‘other comprehensive income’ (OCI)
on the basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently (reclassification adjustments).

+ NZIFRS 10, ‘Consolidated financial statements’ building on existing principles by identifying the concept of control as the
determining factor in whether an entity should be included within the consolidated financial statements of the parent
company. ‘The standard provides additional guidance to assist in the determination of control where this is difficult to assess.
The Group has assessed their ownership interests in their investments and reconsidered the control over all entities within the
Group structure. No changes to the consolidation of the entities were made as a result.

« NZIFRS 11, Joint arrangements’ focuses on the rights and obligations of the parties to the arrangement rather than its legal
form. There are two types of joint arrangements: joint operations and joint ventures. Joint operations arise where the investors
have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities of an arrangement. A joint operator accounts for its share of the assets,
liabilities, revenue and expenses. Joint ventures arise where the investors have rights to the net assets of the arrangement;
joint ventures are accounted for under the equity method. Proportional consolidation of joint arrangements is no longer
permitted. The Group has assessed the control that it has over it's investments and it has been determined that both Rockgas
and On Metering are joint ventures under the new requirements.

+ NZIFRS 12, Disclosures of interests in other entities’ includes the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other
entities, including joint arrangements, associates, structured entities and other off balance sheet vehicles. Additional disclosures
as required were included.

= NZIFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurement; aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise definition
of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across IFRSs. The requirements,
which are largely aligned between IFRSs and US GAAP, do not extend the use of fair value accounting but provide guidance on
how it should be applied where its use is already required or permitted by other standards within NZ IFRSs. Adoption of this
standard has resulted in a number of additional disclosures in the financial statements but has not resulted in any material
measurement changes.

(ab) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
The Company only adopts new accounting standards once they have been issued and are effective.

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after
1 April 2013, and have not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements. None of these are expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group, except the following set out below:

« NZIFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments; addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities. NZ IFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and October 2010. It replaces the parts of NZ IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement that relates to the classification and measurement of financial instruments. NZ IFRS 9 requires
financial assets to be classified into two measurement categories: those measured as at fair value and those measured at
amortised cost. The determination is made at initial recognition. The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument. For financial liabilities, the
standard retains most of the NZ IAS 39 requirements. The main change is that, in cases where the fair value option is taken for
financial liabilities, the part of a fair value change due to an entity’s own credit risk is recorded in other comprehensive income
rather than the income statement, unless this creates an accounting mismatch. The group is yet to assess NZ IFRS 9's full impact.
The group will also consider the impact of the remaining phases of NZ IFRS 9 when completed by the Board.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management is carried out by management under policies approved by the Board of Directors. Management identifies and
evaluates relevant financial risks and acts to manage these risks where possible within the parameters set out by the Board of
Directors. The Board provides written principles for overall risk management as well as policies covering specific areas, such as
foreign exchange risk and credit risk.

(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group's revenue is denominated in New Zealand, Australian and US dollars. The Group may from time to time purchase assets
denominated in foreign currency. Board approval is required for foreign currency denominated contracts valued above a specified
threshold, together with a recommendation on the manner in which the foreign currency exposure is to be managed, which may
include the use of foreign exchange contracts.

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group has an interest rate risk relating to bank borrowings that are on floating interest rates, exposing it to the risk that rising
interest rates will increase its interest expense and hence reduce its profitability. The Group operates under the following policy
which prescribes the proportion of fixed interest rate cover that it must hold in relation to its future borrowings. This proportion is
calculated based on the actual fixed rate cover held and the forecast debt levels. The Group will have various interest rate financial
instruments to manage exposure to fluctuations in interest rates. Any resulting differential to be paid or received on the instruments
is recognized as a component of interest paid.

The following framework is utilised by the Group to determine the proportion of fixed rate interest rate cover it must hold.

Hedging profile

Period Minimum Cover Maximum Cover
0to 1 year 25% 75%

1-3 years 35% 75%

3 -5 years 35% 75%

The Board will determine the maximum and minimum percentages for each time period. Board approval is required for borrowings,
together with a recommendation on the manner in which the interest rate risk is to be managed. The Group has no cash on deposit.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a Group basis. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks, as well as credit
exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables and committed transactions. General financial reserves of the Group
may be invested with any bank registered under New Zealand law, or in government or local government stock, or with financial
institutions holding a formal credit rating by Standard and Poors or Moody's of an "A" or better, or financial institutions that provide
well supported first ranking security. Funds will be invested only for periods of time which reflect the projected cash flow
requirements of the Group. The maximum investment in any one financial institution shall not exceed a sum equivalent to 5% of
the Group's total assets, as disclosed in the statement of financial position published in the preceding annual report of the Group.
Credit risk associated with trade receivables is limited through retailer invoicing for line and metering charges rather than individual
consumer invoicing for line and metering charges. Credit is also limited with trade receivables by the requirement of a 50% up front
payment of the customer contribution for new connections before work is started.

() Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk management has the objective of maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of credit facilities to meet the short and long term commitments of the Group as they arise in an orderly manner.
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity requirements on the basis of expected cash flow. The Board of
Directors approves all new borrowing facilities.

2014 2013
$'000 $'000
External funding arrangements
Overdraft facility - BNZ 500 500
Long Term Funding
Maturing greater than 12 months
Flexible Credit Facility (ANZ) 30,000 15,000
Money Market Line (ANZ) 14,329 10,064

(d) Fair value estimation
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or for disclosure purposes. The
value of any financial instruments that are not traded in and active market is determined using valuation techniques. The Group uses

a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each balance date. Refer to notes 14
and 19.

(e) Capital risk management

The Group's objective when managing capital (which comprises share capital plus retained earnings) is to safe guard the ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns to shareholders, consumers, and other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders.

During 2014, the group's strategy, which was unchanged from 2013, was to maintain the Shareholders Equity to Total Asset ratio to
be greater than 50%.

The Group is subject to the following externally imposed capital requirements, which are measured at balance date. They relate to
bank covenants within the Company’s external debt facility.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(e) Capital risk management (continued)

Tangible Assets
Total Equity
Shareholders Equity to Total Assets

EBIT
Interest Cost
Interest Cover

GROUP PARENT

2014 2013 2014 2013
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
189,459 164,902 189,737 164,463
116,092 111,632 115717 111,005
61.3% 67.7% 61.0% 67.5%
16,799 16,470 17,430 16,363
1,403 1,046 1,403 1,046
12:1 16:1 12:1 16:1

The decrease in the ratio during 2014 resulted primarily from increased Capital expenditure financed from Loans.

Shareholders' Investment x 100 > 50%
Total Tangibile Assets

EBIT >3.0
Interest Costs

4 REVENUE

Network Lines Revenue

Meter Revenue

Contracting Revenue

Interest

Customer Contributions

Sundry

Dividends

Revaluation of Investment Property 14

5 EXPENSES

Audit Fee

Auditor's Other Services

- Non-assurance services

- Information Disclosure Audit
- Threshold Compliance Audit

Directors Fees

Bad Debts Written Off
Donations

Rent

Interest Expense

Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment
Network Reticulation System

Meters and Relays

Land and Buildings

Fibre

Plant and Equipment

TOTAL DEPRECIATION

Amortisation
Loss on Disposal of PPE

TOTAL DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT

Alpine Energy Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2014

42,866 39231 42,866 39,39
1,846 1,691 1,846 1,691
3,498 2,243 469 1,405

4 34 174 184
5,055 2,711 5,055 2T
321 125 366 224

= - 200 100

- - 329 185
53,590 46,035 51,304 45,896
98 103 56 63
53 49 46 31
255 257 255 158
20 17 20 17
14 55 10 40
23 4 23 4
1,403 1,046 1,403 1,046
3,953 3,678 3,959 3,682
728 296 728 296
50 44 50 44
147 147 147 147
735 681 213 155
5,613 4,846 5,097 4,324
127 94 93 68
302 538 302 538
6,042 5,478 5,492 4,930
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6 TAXATION
GROUP PARENT
2014 2013 2014 2013
$’000 %000 $’000  $'000
Operating Surplus Before Income Tax 15,396 15,424 16,027 15,317
Taxation @ 28 Cents 4,311 4,319 4,488 4,289

Movement in Income Tax Due to:
Non Deferred Tax Differences

Non Assessable Income (386) 1 (353) (62)
Non Deductible Expenses 285 25 16 12
Prior Period Adjustments (139) 173 (140) 173
Tax Expense for Period 4,071 4,518 4,011 4,412
Made up of:
Income Tax Liability in Respect of Current Year 2,066 3,081 1,752 2,766
Prior Period Current Tax Adjustment 13 62 14 62
Prior Period Deferred Tax Adjustment (152) - (154) -
Deferred Taxation 2,144 1,375 2,399 1,584
4,071 4,518 4,011 4,412

The tax (charge)/credit relaing to components of other comprehensive income is as follows:

Gain/(Loss) on Revaluation of Land And Buildings Before Tax 329 185 s =
The Tax (Charge)/Credit On Revaluation of Land And Buildings 107 (29) : =
Gain/(Loss) on Revaluation of Land And Buildings After Tax 436 156 - =
Gain/(Loss)on Interest Rate Swap Before Tax 259 (303) 259 (303)
The Tax (Charge)/Credit on Interest Rate Swap - = - =
Gain/(Loss) on Interest Rate Swap After Tax 259 (303) 259 (303)
Imputation Credit Account Group and Parent

Opening Balance 2,987 3,426 2,267 3,008
Prior Period Adjustment

Income Tax Paid/Payable 3,368 2,161 3,054 2,161
Income Tax Refunded/Refundable (682) - (682) -
Imputation Credits Received 49 341 49 39
Imputation Credits allocated to Dividends in the Year (4,119) (2,941) (4,119) (2,941)
CLOSING BALANCE 1,603 2,987 569 2,267

Deferred Tax
The analysis of Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilities is as follows:

Deferred Tax Assets
- Deferred Tax Assets to be Recovered After More than 12 Months 814 619 288 314
- Deferred Tax Assets to be Recovered Within 12 Months 140 128 140 128

Deferred Tax Liabilities

- Deferred Tax Liabilitiy to be Recovered After More than12 Months ~ (19,491)  (17,291)  (19,723) (17,385)
- Deferred Tax Liabilitiy to be Recovered Within 12 Months (58) (165) (58) (165)
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET) (18,595) (16,709) (19,353) (17,108)

The gross movement on the Deferred Income Tax Account is as Follows:

At 1 April (16,709)  (15306)  (17,108)  (15,513)
Tax (charge)/credit Relating to Components of Comprehensive Income (1,992) (1,375) (2,245) (1,595)
Tax (charge)/credited directly to equity 106 (28) - -
AS AT 31 MARCH (18,595) (16,709) (19,353) (17,108)
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6 TAXATION (CONTINUED)
The Movement in Deferred Income Tax Assets and Liabilities during the year without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:
PARENT
Accelerated Tax
Deferred Tax Liabilities Depreciation Total
$'000 $'000
At 1 April 2012 (15,961) (15,961)
Charged/(Credited) to the Statement of Comprehensive Income (1,590) (1,590)
At 31 March 2013 (17,551) (17,551)
Charged/(Credited) to the Statement of Comprehensive Income (2,231) (2,231)
At 31 March 2014 (19,782) (19,782)
Deferred Tax Assets Provisions Total
$'000 $'000
At 1 April 2012 448 448
Charged/(Credited) to the Statement of Comprehensive Income (6) (6)
At 31 March 2013 442 442
Charged/(Credited) to the Statement of Comprehensive Income (14) (14)
At 31 March 2014 428 428
GROUP
Accelerated Tax
Deferred Tax Liabilities Depreciation Total
$'000 $'000
At 1 April 2012 (15,933) (15,933)
Charged/(Credited) to the Statement of Comprehensive Income (1,524) (1,524)
At 31 March 2013 (17,457) (17,457)
Charged/(Credited) to the Statement of Comprehensive Income (2,199) (2,199)
Charged/(Credited) to the Statement of Changes in Equity 106 106
At 31 March 2014 (19,550) (19,550)
Deferred Tax Assets Provisions Total
$'000 $'000
At 1 April 2012 627 627
Charged/(Credited) to the Statement of Comprehensive Income 120 120
At 31 March 2013 747 747
Charged/(Credited) to the Statement of Comprehensive Income 207 207
At 31 March 2014 954 954
7 SHARE CAPITAL
Paid Up Capital: 41,328,017 Ordinary Shares. The shares have a value of $1.00 per share.
There are no unpaid or uncalled shares. All shares rank equally for voting rights and dividend distributions.
The Company is owned as follows: No. of Shares
Timaru District Holdings Limited 19,630,808 47.50%
Waimate District Council 3,116,132 7.54%
Mackenzie District Council 2,049,870 4.96%
LineTrust South Canterbury 16,531,207 40.00%
41,328,017 100.00%

There were no changes in shareholdings during the year.
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8 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES GROUP PARENT
2014 2013 2014 2013
The balance of Accounts Receivable comprises: $000 $’000 $'000 $’000
Trade Receivables 3,524 2,567 2,492 1,935
Provision for Doubtful Debts (25) (81) (25) (81)
Prepayments 78 105 44 73
Accruals (32) (38) 7 (13)
Due by Other Related Parties 285 50 - -
Due by Joint Arrangements 41 3 41 3
Due by Shareholders District Councils 18 15 = -
Derivative Financial Instruments 120 - - =
Loan Due by Other Related Parties 589 & - -
BALANCE AT END OF THE YEAR 4,598 2,621 2,559 1,917
Trade receivables less than 90 days old 3,288 2,253 2,485 1,789
Trade receivables greater than 90 days old 581 382 49 149
3,868 2,635 2,534 1,938
Trade receivables which are neither past due nor impaired 2,514 2,238 2,433 1,774
Trade receivables which are past due and not impaired 1,355 301 101 68
3,868 2,539 2,534 1,842
9 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
The balance of Accounts Payable comprises:
Trade Payables 2,885 3.757 4,117 4,900
Balance Date Accruals 984 491 544 97
Capital Contributions in Advance 478 2,181 478 2,181
Due by Associated Entities 2,296 - 2,296 -
Due by Shareholders District Councils 26 13 26 13
BALANCE AT END OF THE YEAR 6,669 6,421 7,461 7,191
10 RELATED PARTY LOAN
Shareholder loan to On Metering has no fixed term and is not subject to interest.
Shareholder Loan to NetCon Limited - - 4,086 2,644
Shareholder Loan to On Metering 2,375 - 2,375 -
Shareholder Loan to SmartCo 132 - 132 -
Balance at End of the Year 2,507 - 6,593 2,644
11 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
Subsidiary Interest Held Balance Date Principal Activity
Timaru Electricity Limited 100% 31 March Non-trading
NetCon Limited 100% 31 March Lines Construction & Maintenance
Investment PARENT
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Timaru Electricity Limited
Shares 4,036 4,036
Advances - -
Less Provision against Value of Advance (4,036) (4,036)
NetCon Limited
Shares 30 30
Advances 4,086 2,644
4,116 2,674

NetCon International Limited, a wholly-owned Subsidiary of NetCon Limited, has a 30% share of a Partnership with
SESI International (2011) Limited to construct a Solar Power Project in Barnyan City in Afgahistan. The project is being
funded by the New Zealand Government through the Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Trade. The Partnership is

accounted for as an associate investment. Given the stage of completion of the project, and therefore the uncertainty

as to the eventual profit or loss under the contract, no profit has been recognised within the partnership in the

current year.
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12 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD
Joint Ventures include: Interest Held Balance Date Principal Activity
Rockgas Timaru Limited 50% 31 March Sale of LPG Gas
2013
ASSETS  LIABILITIES REVENUES PROFIT
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Rockgas Timaru Limited 804 220 2,026 248
2014
Rockgas Timaru Limited 653 252 2121 223
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Opening Balance 292 270
Share of Profit/(Loss) 111 124
Prior Period Adjustment 1 (2)
Dividends Received (200) (100)
Closing Balance 204 292
Represented as:
Shares 5 5
Retained Earnings 199 287
204 292

13

CLOSING NET BOOK AMOUNT

On Metering Limited is a joint venture to install advanced meters in the Mainpower network area in North Canterbury.
On Metering Limited is owned by Alpine Energy Limited (50%) and Network Tasman Limited (50%) and formed on

06 June 2013.

On Metering Lmited
2014
On Metering Limited

Opening Balance

Share of Profit/(Loss)
Prior Period Adjustment
Dividends Received
Closing Balance
Represented as:

Shares

Retained Earnings

50% 31 March Electricity Meter Leasing Company

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

PARENT

Year Ended 31 March 2013
Opening Net Book Amount

Additions
Disposals
Depreciation Charge

At 31 March 2013
Cost

Accumulated Depreciation

NET BOOK AMOUNT

4,663 4959 - (296)
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
(148) -
(148) .
(148) -
(148) -

NETWORK METERS LAND FIBRE PLANT TOTAL

RETICULATION AND AND AND

SYSTEM RELAYS BUILDINGS EQUIPMENT
$'000 $'000 $'000  $'000  $'000 $'000
139,176 2,091 - 3428 562 145257
13,519 405 - - 263 14,187
(569) - - - (37)  (606)
(3.682) (296) - (147) (155)  (4,280)
148,444 2,200 - 3,281 633 154,558
183,568 4,967 - 3611 3215 195362
(35,124) (2,768) - (330)  (2,581) (40,804)
148,444 2,200 - 3,281 633 154,558
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

NETWORK METERS LAND FIBRE PLANT TOTAL

RETICULATION AND AND AND
SYSTEM RELAYS BUILDINGS EQUIPMENT
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
PARENT
Year Ended 31 March 2014
Opening Net Book Amount 148,444 2,200 . 3,281 633 154,558
Additions 24,055 9 - - 864 24928
Disposals (678) - - = " (678)
Depreciation Charge (3,959) (728) - (147) (213)  (5,047)
CLOSING NET BOOK AMOUNT 167,862 1,481 - 3,134 1,284 173,761
At 31 March 2014
Cost 206,945 4,976 = 3611 4,079 219,611
Accumulated Depreciation (39,083) (3,495) - (477) (2,795) (45,850)
NET BOOK AMOUNT 167,862 1,481 - 3,134 1,284 173,761
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Included in the closing Net Book Value is Capital Work in Progress 15,803 4,041
GROUP
Year Ended 31 March 2013
Opening Net Book Amount 137,769 2,091 5,061 3,428 3,612 151,961
Revaluation - - 185 - - 185
Additions 13,016 405 128 - 518 14,067
Disposals (567) - - - (43) (610)
Depreciation Charge (3,679) (296) (44) (147) (681) (4,847)
CLOSING NET BOOK AMOUNT 146,539 2,200 5,330 3,281 3,406 160,756
At 31 March 2013
Cost 181,650 4,967 5,420 3,611 9,180 204,828
Accumulated Depreciation (35,111) (2,767) (90) (330) (5,774) (44,072)
NET BOOK AMOUNT 146,539 2,200 5,330 3,281 3,406 160,756
Year Ended 31 March 2014
Opening Net Book Amount 146,539 2,200 5330 3,281 3,406 160,756
Revaluation - - 329 - - 329
Additions 23,638 9 421 - 1,483 25,552
Disposals (678) - - - (8) (686)
Depreciation Charge {3,953} (728) (50) (147) (735)  (5613)
CLOSING NET BOOK AMOUNT 165,546 1,481 6,030 3,134 4,146 180,337
At 31 March 2014
Cost 204,610 4,976 6,170 3,611 10,655 230,022
Accumulated Depreciation (39,064) (3,495) (140) (477) (6,509) (49,685)
NET BOOK AMOUNT 165,546 1,481 6,030 3,134 4,146 180,337
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Included in the closing Net Book Value is Capital Work in Progress 15,544 3,846
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

PARENT
NOTE 2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Valuation at the Beginning of the Year 5,330 5,061
Additions 421 128
Change in Fair Value 4 329 185
Depreciation (50) (44)
Valuation at the End of the Year 6,030 5,330
Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
Rental Income 343 212
Direct operating expenses of investment properties that generated income 152 207

Direct operating expenses of investment properties that did not generate income - -

Investment properties comprises the property located at Washdyke that is leased to related and other parties.
Land and Buildings can only be classified as investments if the owner occupies an insignificant portion thereof.
The Parent occupies an insignificant portion of the propery, which is therefore classified as Investment Property
for the Parent. For Group purposes,it is included as Land and Buildings with Property, plant and equipment.

An independent valuation of the group's land and buildings was performed by G.A. Morton, an independent
Registered, public Valuer, to determine the fair value of the land and buildings as at 31 March 2014 and 2013.

The revaluation surplus net of applicable deferred income taxes was credited to other comprehensive income and is
included in 'Reserves' in Equity.

We have analysed the investment property, by valuation method, to determine the level in the fair value hierarchy
it falls under. The different levels have been defined in the accounting policies, and the fair value of investment
property falls within level 2; inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year.

Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 fair values.

Level 2 fair values of land and buildings have been derived using the market approach. This approach takes sales
prices of comparable land and buildings in close proximity and adjusts for differences in key attributes such as
property size. The market approach also takes into account rental income from the current lease agreements for the
property.

No investment properties were sold during the period.

At the date of issue of these financial statements, no restriction exists on the realisability of investment property or the
remittance of income and proceeds of disposal.

No contractual obligation existed at the date of issue of these financial statements to purchase, construct or the
remittance of income and proceeds of disposals.

No contractual obligation existed at the date of issue of these financial statements to purchase, construct or develop
investment property or for repairs, maintenance or enhancements of rental properties.

Land Buildings (at historical cost)
If land and buildings were stated on the historical cost basis, the amounts would be as follows:

2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Cost 3,800 3,222
Accumulated Depreciation 837 631
Net Book Amount 2,963 2,591
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15 INTANGIBLES

PARENT

Year Ended 31 March 2013
Opening Net Book Amount
Additions

Disposals

Amortisation

CLOSING NET BOOK AMOUNT

At 31 March 2013

Cost

Accumulated Amortisation
NET BOOK AMOUNT

Year Ended 31 March 2014
Opening Net Book Amount
Additions

Disposals

Prior Year Amortisation Adjustment
Amoritisation

CLOSING NET BOOK AMOUNT

At 31 March 2014

Cost

Accumulated Amortisation
NET BOOK AMOUNT

GROUP

Year Ended 31 March 2013
Opening Net Book Amount
Additions

Disposals

Amortisation

CLOSING NET BOOK AMOUNT

At 31 March 2013

Cost

Accumulated Amortisation
NET BOOK AMOUNT

Year Ended 31 March 2014
Opening Net Book Amount
Additions

Disposals

Amortisation

CLOSING NET BOOK AMOUNT

At 31 March 2014

Cost

Accumulated Amortisation
NET BOOK AMOUNT

COMPUTER
EASEMENTS SOFTWARE TOTAL
$'000 $'000 $'000
22 83 105
= 139 139
(2) (66) (68)
20 156 176
57 366 423
(37) (210) (247)
20 156 176
20 156 176
42 32 74
(2) (91) (93)
60 97 157
99 398 497
(39) (301) (340)
60 97 157
22 121 143
z 177 177
= 2 (2)
(2) (92) (94)
20 204 224
57 658 715
(37) (454) (491)
20 204 224
20 204 224
42 53 95
() (125) (127)
60 132 192
99 Fi 810
(39) (579) (618)
60 132 192
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16 LOANS

The Group has a new loan facility with the ANZ Bank to draw down a maximum of $48,000,000. The loan facility
is an interchangable arrangement between a Flexible Credit Facility and a Money Market Line. At balance date the

following amounts were drawn down,

Flexible Credit Facility
Money Market Line

2014
$'000
30,000
14,329

The termination date of the total facility is 16 August 2016. The loan is subject to a negative pledge.
An interest rate swap transaction had been entered into, effective 20 June 2013, covering the $15 million, two further
interest rate swap transaction had been entered into, effective 20 December 2013, covering an additional $5 million
borrowed against the Flexible Credit Facility for a period of five years and $10 million for ten years.
The interest rate applied to borrowings against the Money Market Line facility is linked to the Reserve Bank of
New Zealand Official Cash Rate. A movement of 1.0% in this rate would result in a movement of $143,290 in the

interest expense for the year. The covenants governing the loan have not been breached during the year.

17 COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital Commitments
Lease commitments as lessee:
(b) GPS equipment

(c) Ricoh Equipment

(d) Coffee Machine

Lease payments receivable as lessor
(e) Lease of Fibre Network

Within one year
Between one and five years
Within one year
Between one and five years
Within one year
Between one and five years

Within one year
Between one and five years
Over five years

Rentals from Lease Agreements with Buildings

(f) Lease of Fibre Network

Within one year
Between one and five years
Over five years

2014
$'000
4,466

39
29
20

w N WO

503
2,517
7,885

163
608
139
910

2013
$'000
15,000
10,064

2013
$'000
1,657

16
17
8
9

503
2517
8,430

The Group has other commitments totalling $185,848 per annum relating to new investment contracts with
Transpower. The contracts generally have a term of 20 years, and the existing contracts have expiry dates ranging

from 2017 until 2029.

18 RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING SURPLUS WITH CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

GROUP PARENT

2014 2013 2014 2013

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Operating Surplus After Income Tax 11,325 10,906 12,016 10,904
Add/(Deduct) Non Cash Items
Depreciation and Amortisation 6,041 5478 5,491 4,902
Increase in Deferred Tax Liability 1,886 1,403 2,245 1,595
Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment - - - 28

7,927 6,881 7,736 6,525
Add/(Deduct) Movements in Working Capital Items
(Increase)/Decrease in Accounts Receivable (1,812) (904) (642) (38)
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories and Work in Progress (123) (130) : =
(Increase)/Decrease in Associated Entities Profit 37 (124) - -
Increase/(Decrease) in GST Liability - - (130) (240)
Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors and Employee Entitlements 304 3,644 471 3,909
Increase/(Decrease) in Provision for Tax (1,358) 837 (1,289) 656

(2,952) 3,323 (1,590) 4,287
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18 RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING SURPLUS WITH CASH FLOWS
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)
GROUP PARENT
2014 2013 2014 2013

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Add (Deduct) Items Classified as Financing
Dividends Received - - (200) (100)

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 16,300 21,110 17,962 21,616

19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The table below analyses financial instuments carried at fair value, by valuation method.
The different levels have been defined as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices)

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs).

FINANCIAL ASSETS/(LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY)
DERIVATIVES - USED LOANS AND TOTAL

FOR HEDGING RECEIVABLES
$'000 $'000 $'000
PARENT
Assets as per Balance Sheet
As at 31 March 2013
Related Party Loan - 2,644 2,644
Receivables - 1,917 1,917
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - -
Interest Rate Swap - - -
- 4,561 4,561
As at 31 March 2014
Related Party Loan = 6,593 6,593
Receivables - 2,515 2,515
Cash and Cash Equivalents - 540 540
Interest Rate Swap 62 - 62
62 9,648 9,710

DERIVATIVES -USED MEASURED AT TOTAL
FOR HEDGING AMORTISED COST

Liabilities as per Balance Sheet $'000 $'000 $'000

At 31 March 2013

Trade and Other Payables - (7,191) (7.191)

Cash and Cash Equivalents - (3) (3)

Interest Rate Swap (197) - (197)

Long Term Borrowings - (25,064) (25,064)
(197) (32,258) (32,455)

At 31 March 2014
Trade and Other Payables - (7,696) (7,696)
Cash and Cash Equivalents - . .
Interest Rate Swap - - -
Long Term Borrowings - (44,329) (44,329)
- (52,025) (52,025)
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19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

GROUP DERIVATIVES -USED LOANS AND TOTAL
Assets as per Balance Sheet FOR HEDGING RECEIVABLES
$'000 $'000 $'000

As at 31 March 2013
Related Party Loan - - -

Receivables - 2,621 2,621
Cash and Cash Equivalents - 111 111
Interest Rate Swap - & 5
- 2,732 2,732
As at 31 March 2014
Related Party Loan - 2,507 2,507
Receivables - 4,520 4,520
Cash and Cash Equivalents - 655 655
Interest Rate Swap 62 5 62
62 7,682 7,744
Liabilities as per Balance Sheet
As at 31 March 2013
Trade and Other Payables - (6,421) (6,421)
Interest Rate Swap (197) = (197)
Long Term Borrowings B (25,064) (25,064)
(197) (31,485) (31,682)
As at 31 March 2014
Trade and Other Payables - (6,735) (6,735)
Interest Rate Swap - 5 =
Long Term Borrowings - (44,329) (44,329)
- (51,064) 51,064)

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year.

(a) Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in active market (for example, over -the-counter

derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. These techniques maximise the use of observable market
data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant input required to fair
value an intrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on
observable yield curves. The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange

rates at he balance sheet date. The effects of discounting are insignificant for these derivatives.

Trade receivables, trade payables, related party loans and advances and term loans are disclosed at their carrying
value. The carrying value of these assets and liabilities are equivalent to, or approximate their fair value.

20 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Company has a Contingent Liability as at 31 March 2014 $US2,122,500 to cover a performance guarantee to
cover the Solar Power Project in Bamyan City in Afghanistan. This Contingency is offset by a Term Deposit of
$US1,485,750 held by the BNZ Bank in the event the Performance Guarantee is triggered.

The Group has a contingent liability covering a performance guarantee over NetCon International Limited's share
of the Bamyan Renewable Energy Project in Afghanistan amounting to $US636,750 (2012 $Nil).

21 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Shareholders
All transactions between the Company and its Shareholder District Councils have been conducted on a commercial

basis. Charges between the parties are made for services provided as part of the normal trading activities of
the Company, and as such have been incorporated into the operating costs and revenues of the Company.
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21 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
GROUP PARENT
2014 2013 2014 2013
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Revenues from Shareholder District Councils - Contracting Activities

Mackenzie District Council 59 47 12 7
Timaru District Council 413 479 167 190
Waimate District Council 24 34 8 17
Payments to Shareholder District Councils - Rates

Mackenzie District Council 15 17 15 17
Timaru District Council 68 53 65 43
Waimate District Council - 11 - 14

Trading balances due from and to Shareholder District Councils are shown in note 8 and 9.
Parties Associated with Directors

The Group contracted with parties associated with certain directors of Alpine Energy Limited.
These transactions involved consulting services and were at normal commercial rates.

Deloitte (5.R. Thompson) ) 113 40 44
Joint Ventures

Transactions with Joint Ventures include:

Charges to Rockgas Timaru Limited for property rentals and financial services.

Revenues from Rockgas Timaru Limited 42 47 37 41
Trading balances due from and to Joint Ventures, and loans to Joint Ventures are shown in notes 8 and 9.
Revenues from On Metering 88 - 88 -
Transations with Other Related Parties

Revenues from BREP 306 329
Payments to BREP - -

Trading balances due from and to Other Related Parties, and loans to Other Related Parties are shown in
notes 8 and 9.
Transactions with Subsidiaries include:

Charges to NetCon Limited for property rentals and interest.
Payments to NetCon Limited for lines maintenance and construction, financial services and procurement.

GROUP PARENT
2014 2013 2014 2013
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Revenues from NetCon Limited 298 271 208 271
Payments to NetCon Limited 18,951 15,824 18,951 15,824

Trading balances due from and to Subsidiaries, and loans to Subsidiaries are shown in notes 8 and 9.
Transactions with key management personnel
Key management personnel compensation was as follows:
Salaries 2,344 1,804 1,034 960
There is no provision for doubtful debts or bad debt expense for related parties.

22 EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE
The Directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance since the end of the financial year not otherwise

dealt with in this report that has significantly affected or may significantly affect the operation of the Company
or Group, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the Company or Group.
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Performance targets were set in the Staterment of Corporate Intent approved by Directors.

GROUP PARENT
2014 2013 2014 2013

Financial Information

1. Ratio of Net Surplus attributable to the Shareholders
to Average Shareholders Equity:

Target 10.4% 7.5% 10.2% 7.5%

Result 9.9% 9.9% 10.6% 10.0%

2. Tangible Assets per Share:
Target $4.50 $2.79 $4.36 $2.79

Result $4.58 $3.99 $4.59 $3.98

3. Earnings per Share:
Target $0.297 $0.259 $0.289 $0.259

Result $0.274 $0.264 $0.291 $0.264

4. Total Dividend per Share:
Target $0.183 $0.183

Result $0.183 $0.183

5. Ratio of Shareholders' Equity to Total Assets:
Minimum Target 50.0% 50.0% 50.0% 50.0%
Result 61.3% 67.7% 61.0% 67.5%
Non Financial Information
6. Electricity Line Losses
Maximum Target 6.0% 6.0%
Result 4.8% 6.0%
7. Average Interruption Duration (SAIDI) and Average Interruption Frequency (SAIFI)
The performance targets relating to SAIDI and SAIF| align to the limits set by the Electricity Distribution Services
Default Price Quality Path Determination 2012 and the results are calculated accordingly. The 2014 SAIDI and SAIFI
results included in the audited Default Price Quality Path Annual Compliance Statement exceeded the limits set and

the Company therefore did not meet the target set primarily due to the significant weather events experienced during
the year.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE READERS OF
ALPINE ENERGY LIMITED AND GROUP’S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND STATEMENT OF SERVICE PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

The Auditor-General is the auditor of Alpine Energy Limited Limited (the company) and group. The
Auditor-General has appointed me, Mark Bramley, using the staff and resources of
PricewaterhouseCoopers, to carry out the audit of the financial statements and statement of service
performance of the company and group on her behalf.

We have audited:

- the financial statements of the company and group on pages 14 to 36, that comprise the balance
sheet as at 31 March 2014, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date and the notes to the
financial statements that include accounting policies and other explanatory information; and

- the statement of service performance of the company and group on page 37.

Opinion

Financial statements and the statement of service performance

In our opinion,

- the financial statements of the company and group on pages 14 to 36:

. comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand;
- comply with International Financial Reporting Standards; and
- give a true and fair view of the company and group’s:
- financial position as at 31 March 2014; and
- financial performance and cash flows for the year ended on that date;
- the statement of service performance of the company and group on page 37:

- complies with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and

- gives a true and fair view of the company and group’s achievements measured against
the performance targets adopted for the year ended 31 March 2014.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Wesipac Building, 106 George Street, PO Box 5848, Dunedin 9038, New Zealand
T:+64 34703600, F: +64 3 470 3601, pwe.co.nz
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Other legal requirements

In accordance with the Financial Reporting Act 1993 we report that, in our opinion, proper accounting
records have been kept by the company and group as far as appears from an examination of those
records.

Our audit was completed on 4 June 2014. This is the date at which our opinion is expressed.

The basis of our opinion is explained below. In addition, we outline the responsibilities of the Board of
Directors and our responsibilities, and explain our independence.

Basis of opinion

We carried out our audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which
incorporate the International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand). Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and carry out our audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements and statement of service performance are free from material
misstatement.

Material misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts and disclosures that, in our
judgement, are likely to influence readers’ overall understanding of the financial statements and
statement of service performance. If we had found material misstatements that were not corrected, we
would have referred to them in our opinion.

An audit involves carrying out procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements and statement of service performance. The procedures selected depend on
our judgement, including our assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements
and statement of service performance whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
we consider internal control relevant to the preparation of the company and group’s financial
statements and statement of service performance that give a true and fair view of the matters to which
they relate. We consider internal control in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
company and group’s internal control.

An audit also involves evaluating:

- the appropriateness of accounting policies used and whether they have been consistently
applied;

- the reasonableness of the significant accounting estimates and judgements made by the Board
of Directors;

- the adequacy of all disclosures in the financial statements and statement of service
performance; and

= the overall presentation of the financial statements and statement of service performance.
We did not examine every transaction, nor do we guarantee complete accuracy of the financial

statements and statement of service performance. Also we did not evaluate the security and controls
over the electronic publication of the financial statements and statement of service performance.

Page 2

Alpine Energy Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2014



40

92

_L

pwec

In accordance with the Financial Reporting Act 1993, we report that we have obtained all the
information and explanations we have required. We believe we have obtained sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is responsible for preparing financial statements and a statement of service
performance that:

- comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand;

- give a true and fair view of the company and group’s financial position, financial performance
and cash flows; and

- give a true and fair view of the company and group’s service performance achievements.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for such internal control as it determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements and a statement of service performance that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Board of Directors is also responsible
for the publication of the financial statements and statement of service performance, whether in
printed or electronic form.

The Board of Directors’ responsibilities arise from the Energy Companies Act 1992 and the Financial
Reporting Act 1993.

Responsibilities of the Auditor

We are responsible for expressing an independent opinion on the financial statements and reporting
that opinion to you based on our audit. Our responsibility arises from section 15 of the Public Audit Act
2001 and section 45(1) of the Energy Companies Act 1992,

Independence

When carrying out the audit, we followed the independence requirements of the Auditor-General,
which incorporate the independence requirements of the External Reporting Board.

In addition to the audit, we have carried out assignments in the areas of compliance with the
Electricity Distribution (Information Disclosure) Determination 2012, Electricity Distribution Services
Default Price-Quality Path Determination 2012, other regulatory requirements of the Commerce
Act1986, an industry benchmarking review and a limited scope non-audit assurance engagement,
which are compatible with those independence requirements. Other than the audit and these
assignments, we have no relationship with, or interests in, the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

MW

Mark Bramley
PricewaterhouseCoopers
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MACKENZIE DISTRICT COUNCIL

REPORT TO: FINANCE COMMITTEE

SUBJECT: FRAUD EVENT TWIZEL OFFICE
MEETING DATE: 24 JULY 2014

REF: STA

FROM: MANAGER FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION

ENDORSED BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

PURPOSE OF REPORT:
To brief council on the fraud event that occurred December 2013 — February 2014.

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:

1. That the report be received and the content noted.

PAUL MORRIS WAYNE BARNETT
MANAGER FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

2014-07-24 twizel fraud event
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BACKGROUND:
Between December, 2013, and February, 2014, $3,480 in cash takings from the
Twizel swimming pool went missing.

This was discovered when staff routinely checked month end results for the Twizel
swimming pool income against the expected budget. Over three months the income
was consistently below budget, when the expectation was that it should have been
on budget or higher.

The community facilities manager made initial enquiries with the Twizel Pool
supervisor as to whether things were slow at the pool, as indicated by the lower
revenue. The supervisor said that the pool had been well patronised and in her
opinion, takings should be up. The community facilities manager then asked the
Twizel council office staff about the banking of the money and it became apparent
that no pool banking had been done for some time. The reason given was that staff
had been very busy with the demands of the Information Centre and needed time to
complete the banking reconciliation.

When the banking was finally done, pool takings showed a significant difference
between YTD income when compared to the previous year.

Council staff in Fairlie then collated information from the Twizel office to reconcile the
daily bankings with the banking sheets and multiple discrepancies were discovered.
Some swimming pool till tapes were missing from the period of the discrepancies
and the amounts banked did not correlate with the pool supervisor's records
provided directly.

Twizel office staff were interviewed individually and an independent person was
called in to investigate. This person was chosen due to his knowledge of our
systems and his background in fraud detection. The Twizel Information Centre
supervisor, resigned immediately after her interview, stating health grounds.

The internal investigation reviewed the actions of remaining staff and found no
evidence of inappropriate actions.

As the matter had not been resolved our findings were handed to the police who
then investigated. During a police interview the former employee admitted stealing
the money.

Keri-Ann Burgess was charged with theft as a servant and falsifying a document for
personal gain. She appeared in court and entered a guilty plea on the 24" of June.
She now awaits sentencing on or about the 4™ of August, 2014.

Council has an option to undertake restorative justice prior to her sentencing.

Because of the nature of the issue, AuditNZ and the Office of the Auditor General
were notified. Council has also notified its insurers.

WHY DID THIS OCCUR?

This is an unfortunate situation where a person who was placed in a position of
responsibility has taken the opportunity to use her authority and the lack of
experience of the other staff to manipulate the situation to her advantage.

2014-07-24 twizel fraud event
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PROCESSES:

What have we changed?

These situations, although unfortunate, do have a bright side in that they cause staff
to review processes and procedures to ensure they are robust.

The process is fundamentally sound. It works well in Fairlie. However, due to
distance and a lack of personal oversight in Twizel we have introduced the following
measures:

1. Swimming pool takings are reported to the community facilities manager by
the pool supervisor each day.

2. Pool banking records are forwarded to the Fairlie office for reconciliation
against #1 above, after the funds are banked.

3. The community facilities manager will inform the finance and administration
manager and his staff how much to expect from pool bankings.

2014-07-24 twizel fraud event



97

MACKENZIE DISTRICT COUNCIL

REPORT TO: FINANCE COMMITTEE

SUBJECT: BANCORP QUARTERLY REPORT —JUNE 2014

MEETING DATE: 24 JULY 2014

REF: FIN 9/1/9

FROM: MANAGER — FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION

ENDORSED BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

PURPOSE OF REPORT:

The report has been tabled to inform Councillors of the performance of the Council’s
investment portfolio, which is managed by Bancorp Treasury Services Limited.

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:

1.  That the report be received.

PAUL MORRIS
MANAGER — FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION

WAYNE BARNETT
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

2014-07-24 bancorp quarterly report june 2014
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ATTACHMENTS:

Appendix 1:  Quarterly report from Bancorp Treasury Services to 30 June 2014.

PARTICULAR POINTS TO NOTE:

Comparison with the Benchmark

The Council’s portfolio increased in value by 1.58%, whereas the benchmark portfolio
increased in value by 1.31% over the quarter, therefore the Council’s Portfolio outperformed
compared to the benchmark.

The main reason why Councils portfolio outperformed the benchmark index is as follows;

Councils portfolio duration assisted with the outperformance of the benchmark with Councils
portfolio duration of 2.49 years being longer than that of the Benchmark (2.22 years). Also
assisting in Councils performance were the rise in short-term interest rates compared to the
fall in longer-term rates.

Council currently invests surplus funds in the Retail term deposit market rather than the bond
market. Currently Council has $8.3million invested in this way. By way of comparison,
Council earns 4.32% on a $3.5million investment for 90 days. To earn an equivalent return
in the bond market it would need to invest for approximately 1 ¥ years.

Movements in the Portfolio

The portfolio stands at $3.28 Million. The portfolio remained the same over the period.

At the end of June the weighted average running yield of Councils bond portfolio was 6.40%.
$8.3mil has been reinvested in term deposits of varying duration up to 90 days.

Policy Adherence
e All financial market investments comply with the counterparty exposure limits as
outlined in the Treasury Policy.
e All investments are readily tradable (liquid) on the secondary market.
e The duration of MDC’s portfolio at 2.49 years is within the 25% allowable fluctuation
band of the benchmark portfolio’s duration of 2.22 years.
e Assets category percentages are as follows (excluding the call deposit):
o Registered Banks 66.96%
o Local Authorities 33.04%

Financial Market Movements
There were no movements in the Official Cash rate during the period.

2014-07-24 bancorp quarterly report june 2014
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PORTFOLIO REPORT

Below is a summary of the performance of Mackenzie District Council’s (“MDC”) Long Term Funds

Portfolio (“LTFP”) and the benchmark portfolio for the quarter ended 30 June 2014.

MDC’s LTFP, on an open to close valuation basis with coupons received during the quarter included,

increased in value by 1.58%.

MDC portfolio value at 31 March 2014 $ 3,136,058
MDC portfolio value at 30 June 2014 $ 3,134,589
Add coupon payments $ 50,948
Net — purchases/sales/maturities $ Nil
Total $ 3,185,537
Percentage change in effective cash value +1.58%

The benchmark portfolio, on an open to close valuation basis with coupons received during the quarter

included, increased in value by 1.31%.

Benchmark portfolio value at 31 March 2014 $10,415,373
Benchmark portfolio value at 30 June 2014 $ 10,429,022
Add coupon payments $ 123,175
Total $ 10,552,197
Percentage change in effective cash value +1.31%

®

BANCORP

BANCORP TREASURY SERVICES LIMITED
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OVERVIEW
A summary of the performance of MDC's LTFP during the June 2014 quarter is as follows:

. The LTFP outperformed the benchmark index, increasing in value by 1.58% compared to the

benchmark portfolio’s increase of 1.31%.
. The running yield of the portfolio as at 30 June 2014 was 6.40%.

° The nominal value of the portfolio remained constant at $3,027,000 during the quarter. However,

$8.3 million has been invested in term deposits.

1 year 2 year 3 year

OCR 90 day

swap swap swap

31 Mar 14 2.75% 3.12% 3.60% 4.05% 4.32% 4.63% 5.03%
30 Jun 14 3.25% 3.63% 3.93% 4.20% 4.38% 4.60% 4.89%
Change +0.50% +0.51% +0.33% +0.15% +0.08% -0.03% -0.14%

During the June 2014 quarter, money market and short term swap rates continued to rise, as the markets
reacted to two further 25 basis point increases in the Official Cash Rate (“OCR”) and to the prospect
of two more OCR hikes to come in 2014. However, longer term swap rates declined in line with moves in
offshore markets, the latter pushed lower by geopolitical tensions in the Ukraine, a softer global growth
and inflation outlooks and the prospect of a prolonged period of historically low cash rates in

industrialised economies.

The yield curve flattened further over the quarter with the benchmark spread between the 2 year and 10
year swap rates declining from an opening level of 98 basis points to close at 69 basis points. The yield
curve is pivoting around the 4 year mark, with the 4 year swap rate virtually unchanged from the
beginning of the year at 4.49%, whereas the 1 year swap rate is up by 51 basis points, while the 10 year

swap rate fell 37 basis points in the first six months of the year.

Credit spreads in New Zealand continued to decline during the quarter as investors and banks alike
competed for quality credit names. The chart on the following page shows credit spreads for the
New Zealand Corporate A Grade Bond index (the grey shaded area), the yield of the index (the blue
line) and the 3 year swap (red line) dating back to the beginning of 2007. The sub chart below the

main chart shows the duration of the index which is currently 2.87 years.
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PORTFOLIO ACTIVITY

The LTFP outperformed the benchmark portfolio over the June quarter, increasing in value by 1.58%
compared to the benchmark portfolio’s increase of 1.31%. This outperformance is due to the longer
duration of the LTFP (2.49 years) compared to the benchmark portfolio (2.22 years) and the direction
that interest rates took during the quarter. While short term rates rose, longer term rates fell and, with
MDC having a longer duration than the benchmark portfolio, it benefited more from the fall in interest rates
at the longer end of the yield curve. The LTFP had 67% of its portfolio maturing more than three years
ahead, whereas the benchmark portfolio had 50% of its portfolio maturing more than three years ahead.
The LTFP also outperformed the ANZ Corporate A Grade Bond index which increased by 1.40% during the

quarter.

During the quarter MDC continued to invest in term deposits rather than corporate bonds, as term
deposits provided a higher yield than bonds of a similar term. At the end of the June quarter, MDC held
$8.3 million on term deposit, the largest being $3.5 million deposited for 90 days at a rate of 4.32%.

The table on the following page shows the yields on various corporate bonds as at 30 June 2014 which
MDC would be able to invest in under the parameters of its Treasury Policy. This indicates that to achieve
an equivalent yield to the one that MDC received for the $3.5 million term deposit it would have needed

to invest for a term of around 1% years in the bond market.
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Security Maturity
Auckland Council 02-10-14 6.68% AA 3.85%
Westpac 16-03-15 4.86% AA- 4.05%
BNZ 27-05-15 8.67% AA- 4.16%
ANZ 16-02-16 6.31% AA- 4.55%
Tauranga CC 15-04-16 6.25% A+ 4.56%
Dunedin City Treasury 15-11-16 6.79% A+ 4.71%
ASB Bank 08-06-17 6.06% AA- 4.89%
Transpower 30-11-18 5.14% AA- 5.17%
BNZ 20-12-18 6.10% AA- 5.23%
Rabobank 19-03-19 6.10% AA- 5.32%

As at 30 June 2014, MDC complied with the credit rating criteria contained in the Treasury Policy.
Bancorp Treasury continues to classify the ANZ Bank April 2018 bond under the Moody’s Investors
Service (“Moody’s”) ‘equivalent test’ which is permissible under the Treasury Policy. Currently its

Moody’s long term rating is ‘A3’.

Overall, Bancorp Treasury is satisfied with the makeup and profile of MDC’s portfolio. The running
yield of the LTFP, at 6.40%, still delivers considerable benefits over the interest rates available for shorter
term money market investments, which themselves are trading at ‘elevated’ levels compared to

deposit rates available in the wholesale market.

GLOBAL MARKETS OVERVIEW

In the US, economic data was mixed over the June quarter. The employment market was strong with the
important non-farm payrolls data showing that the US added 217,000 jobs in May, following a 282,000
increase in April and 203,000 in March. Taken with the February increase of 222,000, this is the first time
in 14 years that more than 200,000 jobs have been added in four consecutive months. On the other
hand, economic growth as measured by GDP has disappointed, with the revised March quarter figure
showing an annualised contraction of 2.9%, a big change from the ‘mere’ 1.0% contraction that was first
reported. A decrease in both consumer and healthcare pending were cited as the reasons for the poor

number, highlighting how important these two sectors are to the US economy.

Despite the weak GDP data print, the Federal Reserve (‘Fed”) continued along the path of tapering the
bond buying programme, by the end of June it has been reduced to USD35 billion per month
with expectations that the bond buying programme will be finished before the end of the year.
However, it is expected that policymakers will keep the Fed Funds cash rate near zero through to at least

mid 2015, safe in the knowledge that core inflation is well contained.
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The benchmark US 10 year Treasury bond yield started the quarter at 2.80% but fell to a low of 2.40% by
the end of May on the back of a low growth and inflation outlook for the global economy and
geopolitical tensions in the Ukraine. While it failed to break through the important 2.35% support level,
the quarterly closing level of 2.53% still suggests some unease about the prospects for global growth over

the next year or so.

The European Central Bank (“ECB”) finally gave way to threats of deflation, low growth and high
unemployment by announcing further monetary policy easing measures at its meeting in early June. Not
only did it reduce its overnight lending rate from 0.25% to 0.15% and the deposit rate for banks from
0.00% to -0.10%, but it also announced that it will conduct a series of targeted longer term refinancing

operations to provide longer term cheap funding for banks.

Despite these measures, there are still real concerns about the future prospects for the Eurozone
economy, given the reluctance of governments to implement the structural reforms that are needed to lift
the area out of the economic doldrums. Many feel that the ECB will ultimately be forced to undertake a

programme of quantitative easing to engender some form of meaningful economic growth.

In an effort to maintain China’s 7.50% growth target, the People's Bank of China implemented cuts to its
reserve requirement rate, the level of deposits banks are required to keep at the central bank. The
decelerating economy shows just how much China is struggling to make the transition to the desired
domestic-led growth model but Premier Li Kegiang announced that the government will make sure China

reaches its 7.5% growth target this year - considered gospel when it comes to economic data outcomes.

NEW ZEALAND MARKET OVERVIEW

The New Zealand economy continues to surge ahead despite the constraining effects of a rising New
Zealand dollar and falling commodity prices (notably, dairy and timber). The March quarter GDP release
showed 1.0% growth to take average annual growth to 3.3%. Although the GDP rise was dominated by
the Canterbury rebuild, and to a lesser extent construction spending in Auckland, there is little to
suggest a broad based expansion. Nonetheless, the New Zealand economy remains on a solid footing

with consumer and business confidence still at high levels.

Given the softening dairy and lumber prices and the elevated New Zealand dollar, the domestic market
expected the Reserve Bank of New Zealand (“RBNZ”) to signal an easing in its tightening cycle at the
12 June Monetary Policy Statement (“MPS”). Instead, the RBNZ kept with its March interest rate track,
saying that migration was providing an equally strong offsetting effect and that this factor was “expected

to remain an important boost to activity and inflationary pressures over the medium term.”
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Migration remains historically very strong, with the May data showing a monthly net inwards migration
figure just shy of 4,000. While net departures to Australia may have finally found a floor, consistent with
an Australian labour market that is no longer deteriorating, they are still at historically low levels. At this
rate, the annual figure should pass the significant 40,000 level before the end of 2014 and will continue

to worry the RBNZ given the potential impact on an already overheated housing market.

Currently, there is some dislocation between the RBNZ’s projected path for the 90 day bank bill rate and
the markets pricing of where it will track. There was some narrowing of the spread between the two after
the MPS. However, the RBNZ projects the 90 day rate to reach 5.00% by June 2016, whereas the market
is more restrained at around 4.65%. Whether the high New Zealand dollar causes the RBNZ to blink first
remains to be seen but, with New Zealand out on a limb as far as central bank rate hikes are concerned
and international investors attracted by some of the highest interest rates in the developed world, the

‘weight of money’ factor will continue to place upward pressure on the currency.

Medium and longer term swaps remain largely, but not totally, subject to moves in offshore markets.
The 10 year swap rate started the quarter at 5.03%, but not surprisingly fell to 4.63% by the end of May,
before closing the quarter 26 basis points higher at 4.89%, a 26 basis point increase from the low. By
comparison, the US 10 year Treasury bond yield only increased by 13 basis points during the same

period. This disparity reflects the relative economic performances and outlooks for the two economies.

The chart on the following page shows current 90 day bank bill futures pricing and the RBNZ's
projections from the last three MPSs. The black line shows the RBNZ’s most recent projection in the June

MPS and the dotted blue line the current 90 day bank bill futures pricing.
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90 day bank bill futures
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LOCAL AUTHORITY SECTOR

The LGFA held its most recent tender on 18 June. In total, $155 million of bonds and Floating Rate Notes

(“FRN”) were issued, with $369 million of bids received. Details of the tender are as follows:

o 15 March 2019 maturity - $10 million issued at a margin of 64 basis points over swap for an

unrated borrower.

o 15 May 2021 maturity - $10 million issued at a margin of 74 basis points over swap for an unrated
borrower.
o 15 April 2023 maturity - $135 million issued at a margin of 86 basis points over swap for an

unrated borrower.

Late in the June quarter, there was resurgence in standalone bond issuance by local authorities. This
resulted from a desire by a number of borrowers to diversify some of their funding away from the
LGFA and to seek a term of six years (2020 maturity) that the LGFA does not offer. Also, there was a
need from some investors to achieve ‘name diversification’ away from the LGFA. Three ‘AA-" borrowers
issued 6 year FRNs at a margin over swaps of 42 basis points while an unrated borrower issued a
6 year fixed rate bond at a margin over swaps of 55 basis points. In addition, one ‘AA’ rated local

authority issued a 3 year fixed rate bond at a margin over swaps of 31 basis points.

Margins for bank funding fell slightly during the quarter with three year facilities for unrated borrowers
priced around 100 to 105 basis points all up. However, bank funding is increasingly regarded as a
liquidity type facility for those borrowers who can access the capital markets, either through the LGFA or

by issuing in their own names.

®

BANCORP

BANCORP TREASURY SERVICES LIMITED

Page 7



107

PoLICY ADHERENCE
. As at 30 June 2014, MDC was compliant with the investment parameters contained in its Treasury

Policy.

. The duration of the LTFP at 2.49 years is within the 25% allowable fluctuation band of the

benchmark portfolio’s duration of 2.22 years.

. As far as liquidity is concerned, all of the bonds in the portfolio have been traded regularly on
the secondary market during the September quarter. We are confident that the portfolio would

be able to be sold at short notice if required.

. As at 30 June 2014, the asset category percentages complied with the Treasury Policy. These are as

listed below and are graphically illustrated in the chart:-

- Banks 66.96%
Local Authorities 33.04%

Mackenzie DC Asset Category Percentages
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Benchmark

Security

3 month Bank Bill
Fonterra*

BNZ

Chch City Holdings
NZ Post

Telstra

Auckland Council
ANZ/National Bank
ASB

Rabobank NZ

Value as at 31/03/2014

*Quarterly coupon

Issue Date

304Jun-14
15-Mar-09
21-Apr-04
27-Jun-10
15-Nov-11
154ul-12
20-Apr-04
16-Feb-11
19-Jul-12
19-Mar-12

Maturity Date Coupon

30-Sep-14
15-Mar-15
27-May-15
27-Jun-16
15-Nov-16
11-Jul-17
29-Sep-17
16-Feb-18
18-Jul-18
19-Mar-19

7.75
8.67
6.87
5.22
7.51
6.52
6.85
5.06
6.10

31-Mar-14

Nominal

$

1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000

$10,000,000

Yield

3.12
3.92
4.04
5.01
5.12
5.33
4.81
5.28
5.37
5.51

30-Jun-14
Value Nominal Coupons
$ $ 01/04 to 30/06
$
992,290 1,000,000
1,039,140 1,000,000 $19,375
1,081,452 1,000,000 $43,350
1,056,616 1,000,000 $34,350
1,021,976 1,000,000 $26,100
1,081,115 1,000,000
1,054,757 1,000,000
1,062,508 1,000,000
998,218 1,000,000
1,027,301 1,000,000
$10,415,373  $10,000,000  $123,175
$10,415,373

Yield Value Effective cash
$ 30/06/2014
$
3.63 991,047 991,047
4.11 1,028,461 1,047,836
4.16 1,047,709 1,091,059
5.03 1,035,019 1,069,369
5.02 1,010,890 1,036,990
5.25 1,097,802 1,097,802
4.80 1,067,533 1,067,533
5.11 1,082,261 1,109,111
5.16 1,019,142 1,109,112
5.32 1,049,158 1,049,158
$10,429,022  $10,669,017
30/06/2014 10,429,022
Coupons 123,175
Net Purchases/Sales Nil
10,552,197,
Effective change in cash $136,825
% change 1.31%
Duration-years 2.22
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Mackenzie District Council
31-Mar-14 30-Jun-14
Security Issue Date Maturity Date Coupon Nominal Yield Value Nominal Coupons Yield Value Effective Cash
$ $ $ 01/04 to 30/06 $ 30/06/2014
ROTORUA DC 25-Sep-09 25-Sep-14 6.49 500,000 3.63 507,320 500,000 3.93 511,497 511,497
BNZ 27-May-08 27-May-15 8.67 500,000 4.04 540,726 500,000 21,675 4.16 523,854 545,529
AUCKLAND COUNCIL 27-Sep-10 27-Sep-17 6.52 500,000 4.81 527,515 500,000 4.80 533,904 533,904
ANZNATIONAL 18-Apr-08 18-Apr-18 5.28 500,000 6.32 493,550 500,000 13,200 5.94 494,138 507,338
ANZNATIONAL 20-Sep-11 20-Sep-18 6.08 500,000 5.34 515,440 500,000 5.18 525,251 525,251
BNZ 20-Dec-11 20-Dec-18 6.10 527,000 5.38 551,507 527,000 16,073 5.23 545,944 562,017
$3,027,000 $3,136,058 $3,027,000 $50,948 $3,134,589 $3,185,537
Value 31/03/2013 $3,136,058 Value 30/06/2014 3,134,589
Coupons 50,948
Net maturities and adjustments
3,185,537
Effective change in cash $49,479
% change 1.58%
Duration-Years 2.49
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Mackenzie DC vs Benchmark - Quarterly
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Mackenzie DC vs Benchmark - Cumulative
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